
William Biddlecombe
Councilmember

Joe Dike
Councilmember

Sam Artino
Councilmember

Monty Tapp
Mayor

Mark Claus
Vice-Mayor

Matt Grieves
Councilmember

Joel Hagy
Councilmember

I. Call to Order Public Hearing  
Moment of Silence followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag

II. Roll Call of City Council

III. Public Hearing
III.a Public Hearing on the re-zoning application of Lemmy's Restaurant on approximately 0.5597 acres of

property comprised of 3 parcels (PPN's 43-00306.000, 43-00305.000& 43-00307.000) from the current
R-1A Single Family Residential to B-3 General Business.

III.b Swear in Witnesses
III.c Witness Testimony
III.d Motion to approve the re-zoning application of Lemmy's Restaurant on approximately 0.5597 acres of

property comprised of 3 parcels (PPN's 43-00306.000, 43-00305.000& 43-00307.000) from the current
R-1A Single Family Residential to B-3 General Business.

III.e Adjourn Public Hearing

IV. Call To Order Regular Meeting of City Council

V. Roll Call of City Council

VI. Approval of Minutes
VI.a Minutes of the June 27, 2023 Council work session.

VII. Audience Comments Citizens may address their concerns to City Council. Please state your name and
address for the recorded journal. (3-minute time limit) 

VIII. Old Business

 
CITY COUNCIL — REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

Tuesday, November 14, 2023 @ 6:30 PM 
City Council Chambers

417 Main Street
Huron, Ohio 44839

LIVESTREAM MEETING INFORMATION  
This regular meeting of Council will be conducted in person in Council Chambers at Huron City Hall and live-
streamed on the City of Huron's YouTube channel. The public is free to observe and hear the discussions and
deliberations of all members of City Council via the following link:  https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCpRAV-
AnmlA6lfukQzKakQg

 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 



IX. New Business
IX.a Ordinance No. 2023-40 (first reading) (submitted by Erik Engle)

An ordinance authorizing rezoning of real property owned by Jan Weske Bucholz (known as Lemmy's
Restaurant) PPN's 43-00306.000, 43-00305.000 & 43-00307.000 from the current R-1A (One-Family
Residence District) to B-5 (General Business District).

IX.b Ordinance No. 2023-39 (first reading) (submitted by Matt Lasko)
An ordinance amending and restating Paragraph (b) under Section 163.04 (Paid Holidays) of Chapter
163 (Employment Provisions).

IX.c Ordinance No. 2023-41 (submitted by Stuart Hamilton)
An ordinance authorizing execution of the 2023 NPP Power Pool Participant Schedule with American
Municipal Power, Inc. (contract number 2024-009425-SCHED) 

IX.d Resolution No. 71-2023 (first reading) (submitted by Chief Terry Graham)
A resolution authorizing the automatic one-year renewal of the City's dispatch agreement with the Erie
County Sheriff's Office for the provision of emergency dispatch services for calendar year 2024.

IX.e Resolution No. 72-2023 (first reading) (submitted by Cory Swaisgood)
A resolution authorizing the annual premium payment to the Bureau of Workers Compensation for the
policy period of January 1, 2024, through January 1, 2025, in the amount of $51,152.

IX.f Resolution No. 73-2023 (first reading) (submitted by Cory Swaisgood)
A resolution authorizing payment of the annual premium to Public Entities Pool of Ohio ("PEP") for the
policy period of December 1, 2023, through November 30, 2024, in the amount of $105,646.53.

IX.g Resolution No. 74-2023 (submitted by Stuart Hamilton)
A resolution authorizing payment of an invoice from the Ohio Department of Transportation relating
to the Annual Maintenance Agreement adopted by Council in Resolution 67-2022, in the amount of
$39,158.72. 

IX.h Resolution No. 75-2023 (submitted by Stuart Hamilton)
A resolution authorizing a proposal with Business Communication Specialists (BCS) for firewall and
endpoint protection services and equipment in the amount of $30, 992.45.

IX.i Resolution No. 76-2023 (submitted by Stuart Hamilton)
A resolution authorizing the purchase of a 2023 Ford F-350 Super Cab vehicle with 8' Knapheide Flip-
Top service body, strobe lighting and Western 8' straight blade plow and plow assembly for use by the
Water Department in the amount of $76,003.

IX.j Resolution No. 77-2023 (submitted by Stuart Hamilton)
A resolution authorizing a 5-year Agreement with Cintas Corporation for uniform rentals for the CIty's
Service Departments.

IX.k Motion setting a public hearing on the proposed FY 2024 Municipal Budget for Tuesday, December 12,
2023 at 6:30pm in Council Chambers, immediately preceding the regular Council meeting. 

X. City Manager's Discussion

XI. Mayor's Discussion

XII. For the Good of the Order

XIII. Executive Session(s)
XIII.a Executive Session for consideration of compensation of a public employee.

XIV. Adjournment

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 



  
TO: Mayor Tapp and City Council
FROM: Erik Engle
RE: Public Hearing on the re-zoning application of Lemmy's Restaurant on approximately 0.5597

acres of property comprised of 3 parcels (PPN's 43-00306.000, 43-00305.000& 43-00307.000)
from the current R-1A Single Family Residential to B-3 General Business.

DATE: November 14, 2023

Rezoning Application 2027 -2029CRW & 245 Atwood (1).pdf
Staff Report-Lemmy's ReZoning Application_EE Final (1).docx
DRAFT 9-20-23 PC DRB Minutes.doc

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2247627/Rezoning_Application_2027_-2029CRW___245_Atwood__1_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2247626/Staff_Report-Lemmy_s_ReZoning_Application_EE_Final__1_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2247619/DRAFT_9-20-23_PC_DRB__Minutes.pdf










TO: Chairman Boyle and Members of the Planning Commission 
FROM: Erik Engle, Planning Director
RE: Lemmy’s - Re-zoning Application Public Hearing & Recommendation
DATE : September 20, 2023
____________________________________________________________________________________________________

Parcel Nos.:  43-00306.000, 43-00305.000, 43-00307.000 (Lemmy’s Restaurant)

Owner/Applicant: Jan Bucholz

Request From:  R-1A Single Family Residential (pursuant to 1121.05(g) of the Codified 
Zoning Ordinance)

Request To: B-3 General Business; to accommodate existing uses and any future uses of 
the site moving forward

Subject Matter/Background
The new owner of the property had reached out to the city regarding their anticipated 
plans for renovations and expansion of the restaurant.  A review of the current zoning of all 
three parcels was found to be R-1A.  The owner advised of their desire to acquire a liquor 
license, addition of an outdoor seating area, and future remodeling and expansion of the 
restaurant.  

Staff worked with the owner to determine the appropriate zoning designation to allow for
current use and future anticipated improvements and expansions.

The applicant is requesting consideration for a rezoning from the current R-1A (Single 
Family) to B-3 (General Business) Zone to allow for any future expansion of existing 
structures/uses.

2020 Master/Action Plan

The 2020 Master Plan does indicate concepts for the Western Communities.  The document 
indicates initiatives for retail parcels located at the mobile home park, develop parcels as 
hospitality, restaurants, and mid-scale retail to take advantage of existing infrastructure 
and highway access/visibility.  The 2020 Master Plan further seeks to outline ways to 
support Cedar Point’s attractions, which includes Sawmill Creek Resort.  Lemmy’s has 
historically served this pivotal intersection fulfilling the kind of uses outlined in the master 
plan. 



Land Use and Zoning

Normally, a hard look at the existing and future land use would give a clearer indication as 
to how appropriate a rezoning proposal would be, but since the city does not have a 
comprehensive plan that looks at key factors like future land use or zoning related to any 
future annexations, a specific correlation to plans cannot be made. 

As mentioned, the existing parcels are currently zoned R-1A, single family residential, but 
have and are currently operating under non-conforming commercial uses.  Surrounding 
Zoning is as follows:

South (COH) – B-3 General Business
North (COH) – R-1A Single Family Residential
East (City of Huron) – B-3 General Business
West (Huron Township) – C-1/C-2 Highway/General Commercial

The existing land uses are as follows:

South (COH) – Gas station, defunct fast-food restaurant, retail
North (COH) – Single family houses
East (City of Huron) – Mobile home park
West (Huron Township) – Vacant commercial lot, restaurant, retail

With the recent annexation of Sawmill Resort and subsequent rezoning to a B-3, further 
existing land uses at the Sawmill Creek Resort include a golf course, hotel, conference 
center, and retail.  

Closely aligned with existing commercial uses centered at the intersection of Cleveland 
Road and Rye Beach, the proposed B-3 rezoning covers all existing uses on Lemmy’s
property and will accommodate any future uses, liquor license allowance, and overall 
expansions the restaurant group may want to undertake without experiencing any 
nonconformity roadblocks they will experience with the existing R-1A zoning. 

Staff Analysis/ Recommendation:
The new owner met with staff to discuss their plans for future remodeling and expansion.
The site is comprised of three (3) parcels; all of which are zoned R-1A.  The current use a 
restaurant does not conform to the R-1A Zoning and is considered pre-
existing/nonconforming.  The remodeling and expansion, addition of a liquor license, and 
an outdoor dining area comprise the improvements that they have made or intend to make.  
The owner has already filed the applications and surveys to have the parcels combined into 
one (1) parcel.  As of this writing, the county has not yet recorded the combination of the 
parcels, but it is anticipated this will be completed soon.  

Staff supports a recommendation to be made to City Council to approval of the rezoning 
application as submitted for the three parcels from R-1A to B-3 .



Attachments:
Rezoning Application

Existing Zoning Map





Proposed Zoning Map



Land Use



City of Huron
Planning Commission/DRB

September 20, 2023 5:00 P.M.

The meeting was called to order at 5:02pm. in the Council Chambers at Huron City Hall, 417 
Main Street by Chairman, Gary Boyle.  Members in attendance: Mark Claus, Mark Cencer,
and Jim Hartley. Members absent:  Bob Howell.  Staff in attendance: Planning Director
Erik Engle, Zoning Inspector Jeff Fantozzi, and Administrative Assistant Christine Gibboney.   

Approval of Minutes N/A

Audience Comments - None

New Business

Public Hearing- Rezoning Application– Lemmy’s Restaurant (3 Parcels) From R-1A to 
B-3 General Business. Parcel Nos.:  43-00306.000, 43-00305.000, 43-00307.000

Project Description
The applicant is requesting consideration for a rezoning of the parcels from the current R-
1A (Single Family) to B-3 (General Business) Zone to allow for compliance with current use
and any future expansion of existing structures/uses.

Mr. Engle provided overview of the application for rezoning of three parcels comprising the 
Lemmy’s Restaurant property from the current R-1A to B-3.  He explained the new owner
met with staff to discuss the current use and future which included improvements to the 
property, outdoor dining area, and the addition of a liquor license.  Mr. Engle noted that the 
lots are currently pre-existing/nonconforming to the R-1A zoning.  He noted the owner has 
already completed the applications to combine all three lots and the finalization is at the 
county level.  Mr. Engle noted that staff is recommending the approval of the rezoning as 
proposed and referenced the zoning maps included with the staff report for surrounding 
uses and zoning.

Mr. Boyle opened the public hearing at 5:05pm.
Owner/Rep:  Jan Bucholz.
Ms. Bucholz addressed the board, noting that she was not aware of the zoning when she 
purchased the property and with the improvements they are planning for the property, the 
combination of the three lots and the rezoning seems appropriate.

Audience Comments:  Rick Gadd
Mr. Gadd inquired about the mention of the liquor license.  Mr. Engle commented that R-1A 
zoning does not allow for a liquor license.  He noted the owner has applied for a license to 
allow them to serve on site.  Mr. Bucholz explained that presently, the restaurant is open for 
breakfast and lunch only, she explained that they have applied to transfer the liquor license 
from the Mariners Club.  Mr. Gadd express concern over the liquor license about hours of 
operation.  Ms. Bucholz advised that they are not planning on being a bar or staying open 
late.

Mr. Boyle referenced the lot combinations and rezoning for use are understandable.  He 
advised that the Planning Commission/DRB will be reviewing all site plans and parking for 
compliance when these applications are submitted and referenced the fenced-in outdoor 



dining area that was constructed.  He noted that this body does not have any role regarding
liquor licensing, noting that this would be a matter to be addressed by City Council.  Mr. 
Claus noted that the fenced-in dining area was approved at a previous meeting.  Members 
referenced the small vacant parcel, Ms. Bucholz noted it is currently a grassy area, but could 
be parking spaces. Members inquired about hour of operation; Mr. Bucholz replied that 
they are thinking of doing dinner hours on Friday and Saturday during the summer months
but would not be staying open late.  Members expressed their support of the rezoning, 
noting it cleans up the existing and future use to be in compliance with the zoning code.

Motion by Mr. Cencer to recommend the approval of the rezoning application, for the 
three parcels from R-1A to B-3 as proposed, referring the recommendation to City 
Council.   Motion seconded by Mr. Claus.  Audience member asked about R-1A Zoning
and use all these years. Mr. Boyle explained the R-1A is a residential zoning and the 
property would be considered preexisting/nonconforming to the uses allowed, however, it 
was legal all these years, now that improvements are planned, zoning needs to be made 
compliant. Roll call on the motion:

Yeas: Cencer, Claus, Boyle, Hartley (4)
Nays: (0)
Abstain: (0)

With a majority vote in the affirmative, motion passes and rezoning application approved as 
submitted (R-1 to B-3) with recommendation made to City Council.

Staff Report

Mr. Engle referenced the survey of work session dates that had been emailed, and advised 
the following dates are being recommended for work sessions to be held at 5:30p.m.:

Wednesday, October 11
Wednesday, November 8
Wednesday, December 6

Members in attendance expressed they believed they would be available for these dates.  
Staff to send out email confirmation to members. Mr. Cencer and Mr. Boyle advised that 
they may not be in attendance for the regular meeting of October 18, 2023.

With no further business, motion by Mr. Hartley to adjourn, motion seconded by Mr. Cencer.  
All in favor, motion passes, meeting adjourned at 5:19pm

_______________________________________________
Christine M. Gibboney
Administrative Assistant-Planning & Zoning

Adopted: _____________________________



  
TO: Mayor Tapp and City Council
FROM: Erik Engle
RE: Ordinance No. 2023-40 (first reading) (submitted by Erik Engle)
DATE: November 14, 2023

Subject Matter/Background

The new owner of the property had reached out to the city regarding their anticipated plans for renovations and
expansion of the restaurant.  A review of the current zoning of all three parcels was found to be R-1A.  The owner
advised of their desire to acquire a liquor license, addition of an outdoor seating area, and future remodeling and
expansion of the restaurant. 

Staff worked with the owner to determine the appropriate zoning designation to allow for current use and future
anticipated improvements and expansions.

The applicant is requesting consideration for a rezoning from the current R-1A (Single Family) to B-3 (General
Business) Zone to allow for any future expansion of existing structures/uses.

2020 Master/Action Plan

The 2020 Master Plan does indicate concepts for the Western Communi5es.  The document indicates ini5a5ves
for retail parcels located at the mobile home park, develop parcels as hospitality, restaurants, and mid-scale retail
to take advantage of existing infrastructure and highway access/visibility. 

The 2020 Master Plan further seeks to outline ways to support Cedar Point’s a7rac5ons, which includes Sawmill
Creek Resort.  Lemmy’s has historically served this pivotal intersec5on fulfilling the kind of uses outlined in the
master plan.

Pursuant to Planning Commission’s recommenda5on at its August 2023 mee5ng, staff recommends Council
approval of the rezoning application for parcels 43-00306.000, 43-00305.000, 43-00307.000, respectively. 

Financial Review
There is no financial impact to the City relating to this re-zoning application.

Legal Review
The matter has been reviewed, follows normal administrative procedure and is property before you.

Recommendation
If Council is in agreement with the request, a motion placing Ordinance No. 2023-40 on its first reading is in order.

Ordinance No. 2023-40 Lemmy's Rezoning Ordinance - Copy.docx
Ordinance No. 2023-40 Exh A Lemmy's Rezoning Application.pdf

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2270627/Ordinance_No._2023-40_Lemmy_s_Rezoning_Ordinance_-_Copy.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2270628/Ordinance_No._2023-40_Exh_A_Lemmy_s_Rezoning_Application.pdf


{02890603 - 1}

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-40
Introduced by William Biddlecombe

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF HURON TO REFLECT THE 
REZONING OF APPROXIMATELY 0.5597 +/- ACRES OF LAND OWNED BY JAN WESKE BUCHOLZ LOCATED 
ON THE NORTH SIDE OF CLEVELAND ROAD, ERIE COUNTY, OHIO PERMANENT PARCEL NUMBERS 43-
00306.000, 43-00305.000 & 43-00307.000 FROM THE CURRENT R-1A (ONE-FAMILY RESIDENCE 
DISTRICT) TO B-3 (GENERAL BUSINESS)

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 1121.05 (a) of the Codified Ordinances, the City is divided into 
nine categories of zoning districts; and

WHEREAS, Section 1121.05 (b) of the Codified Ordinances prescribes that all zoning districts be 
duly approved and recorded on an adopted Zoning Map on file in the Office of the City Clerk; and

WHEREAS, Jan Weske Bucholz submitted an application to rezone approximately 0.5597 +/- acres 
of land located on the north side of Cleveland Road, Erie County, Ohio Permanent Parcel Numbers 43-
00306.000, 43-00305.000 & 43-00307.000 (hereinafter the “Property”), from R-1A (One-Family Residence 
District) to B-3 (General Business District); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 1139.03 of the Codified Ordinances, the rezoning application has 
proceeded through a process of public hearing review and recommendation by the Planning Commission
on September 20, 2023; and

WHEREAS, the Huron City Council was advised of the Planning Commission recommendation to 
support the rezoning request as presented; and 

WHEREAS, Huron City Council, as required by Section 1139.03 of the Codified Ordinances, held a 
Public Hearing on the proposed rezoning request on November 14, 2023, and finds and concludes that 
the rezoning application should be approved because it promotes the public necessity, convenience and 
general welfare, and further constitutes good zoning practice.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HURON, OHIO:

SECTION 1. That the official Zoning Map for the City of Huron previously adopted on December 
27, 2016 by Ordinance 2016-33 shall be and hereby is amended to change the zoning classification of the 
Property on the north side of Cleveland Road, Erie County, Ohio Permanent Parcel Numbers 43-
00306.000, 43-00305.000 & 43-00307.000, from R-1A (One-Family Residence District) to B-3 (General 
Business District) and shall supersede all previously published zoning maps for the City.

SECTION 2.  It is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and 
relating to the adoption of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and of any of its committees that resulted in such formal action, were in 
meeting open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements, including Section 121.22 of the 
Ohio Revised Code.



{02890603 - 1}

     SECTION 3.  That this Ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency measure necessary for 
the immediate preservation of the public health, safety and general welfare of the residents, and to 
ensure the sound fiscal administration of the City of Huron; WHEREFORE, this Ordinance shall take effect 
immediately upon its adoption.

_____________________________________________
Monty Tapp, Mayor

ATTEST:_______________________________

ADOPTED: _____________________________











  
TO: Mayor Tapp and City Council
FROM: Matthew Lasko
RE: Ordinance No. 2023-39 (first reading) (submitted by Matt Lasko)
DATE: November 14, 2023

Subject Matter/Background
Ordinance No. 2023-39 amends Section 163.04 (Paid Holidays) of Chapter 163 (Employment Provisions) to clarify
recognition of the paid holidays of Christmas Eve and New Year's Eve when those holidays fall on a Sunday. In
most instances, when a paid holiday falls on a Sunday, it is recognized on the following Monday. That works for
most holidays, but because both Christmas Eve and New Year's Eve are half-days, the current ordinance language
would result in a half day of work on Christmas Day, with the full day off being the day after Christmas. To avoid
this situation, the new language would recognize the holidays of Christmas Eve and New Year's Eve (only when
they fall on a Sunday) on the Friday preceding the paid holiday. 
 
For example, Christmas Eve and New Year's Eve fall on Sundays this year. As currently written, Section 163.04
would force a half-day off on Christmas day and a full day off on December 26th, and a half-day off on New Year's
Day and a full day off on January 2nd. This would force employees to use 4 hours of vacation or personal time in
order to have Christmas Day or New Year's Day off. This Ordinance corrects this situation by recognizing those
two half-days on the prior Friday. This year, that would mean Christmas Eve would be recognized on Friday,
December 22nd, and New Year's Eve would be recognized on Friday, December 29th. Employees would still have a
full day off on Christmas Day and New Year's Day

Financial Review
There is no financial impact relating to this code amendment.

Legal Review
The matter has been reviewed, follows normal administrative procedure.

Recommendation
If Council is in agreement with the request, a motion placing Ordinance No. 2023-39 on its first reading is in order.

Ordinance No. 2023-39 Chapter 163.04(b) Christmas and NYE holidays (3).docx

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2277109/Ordinance_No._2023-39_Chapter_163.04_b__Christmas_and_NYE_holidays__3_.pdf


ORDINANCE NO. 2023-39
Introduced by Joe Dike

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING AND RESTATING PARAGRAPH (b) UNDER SECTION 163.04 (PAID HOLIDAYS)
OF CHAPTER 163 (EMPLOYMENT PROVISIONS).

WHEREAS, City Staff and counsel for City on employment law and human resource matters have 
evaluated Paragraph (b) under Section 163.04 (Paid Holidays) of Chapter 163 (Employment Provisions), 
and have determined that this provision is in need of enhancement and improvement to accurately reflect 
current policies and procedures, and to ensure the effective and efficient operation of the City pertaining 
to employment and human resources matters; 

WHEREAS, the City hereby adopts a new and amended and restated Ordinance to repeal and 
amend and restate Paragraph (b) of Section 163.04 (Paid Holidays) of Chapter 163 (Employment 
Provisions) to address the concerns of the City Staff and counsel for City on employment law and human 
resource matters.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HURON, OHIO:

SECTION 1:  That paragraph (b) under Section 163.04 (Paid Holidays) of Chapter 163
(Employment Provisions) of the Codified Ordinances of the City of Huron, Ohio, WHICH CURRENTLY READS 
AS FOLLOWS: 

(b)    In case the holiday falls on Saturday, the previous Friday shall be considered as the 
legal holiday. In case the holiday falls on Sunday, the following Monday shall be 
considered the legal holiday.

shall be and hereby is repealed.

SECTION 2:  That paragraph (b) under Section 163.04 (Paid Holidays) of Chapter 163 (Employment 
Provisions) of the Codified Ordinances of the City of Huron, Ohio, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

(b)    In the event the holiday falls on Saturday, the previous Friday shall be considered as 
the legal holiday. In the event the holiday falls on Sunday, the following Monday shall be 
considered the legal holiday. Notwithstanding the foregoing, should Christmas Eve and 
New Year’s Eve fall on Sundays, the Friday preceding shall be considered the legal holiday
for each of those days.

SECTION 3:  That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council 
concerning and relating to the passage of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this 
Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its committees that resulted in such 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements, 
including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.



SECTION 4:  That this Ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency measure necessary for 
the immediate preservation of the public health, safety and general welfare and it is imperative this 
Ordinance be effective immediately, WHEREFORE, this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and 
immediately after its adoption.

____________________________________
Monty Tapp, Mayor

ATTEST:  ___________________________
Clerk of Council

ADOPTED:  _________________________



  
TO: Mayor Tapp and City Council
FROM: Stuart Hamilton , Service Director
RE: Ordinance No. 2023-41 (submitted by Stuart Hamilton)
DATE: November 14, 2023

Subject Matter/Background

The City of Huron's municipal electric system is interconnected to the FirstEnergy transmission system, which is
operated by PJM. PJM controls the regional genera.on and transmission grid ranging from Illinois to New Jersey.
To take advantage of economies of scale for power scheduling, forecas.ng and short-term energy supply in PJM,
AMP has aggregated its forty-three (43) members connected to the FirstEnergy transmission system into the
Northern Power Pool.

The Northern Power Pool Agreement provides the rules and methodologies for alloca.ng among the Pool
Par.cipants, the charges and credits incurred by AMP for energy supply and transmission and genera.on delivery
services.

The Northern Power Pool Agreement was last updated in 2011. During the past year it has become apparent that
there are new charges and credits associated with the PJM se2lement process that were not contemplated in the
2011 Agreement.  Addi.onally, AMP has found a need to update the assignment of other charges/credits to
match the methods in which AMP is invoiced.

Ordinance No. 2023-41's authoriza.on of the updated Northern Power Pool Agreement brings the contract up to
date to formalize the way that the members are operating and invoiced for power supply and delivery costs.

Financial Review
Approval of this legislation does not materially impact Huron Public Power's buying power or the cost to purchase
power.

Legal Review
The matter has been reviewed, follows normal administrative procedure and is properly before you.

Recommendation
If Council is in agreement with the request, a motion adopting Ordinance No. 2023-41 as an emergency measure
is in order.

Ordinance No. 2023-41 AMP 2023 Northern Pool Agreement (2).doc
Ordinance No. 2023-41 Exh 1 AMP Northern Pool Agreement.pdf

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2281334/Ordinance_No._2023-41_AMP_2023_Northern_Pool_Agreement__2_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2270244/Ordinance_No._2023-41_Exh_1_AMP_Northern_Pool_Agreement.pdf


CITY OF HURON, OHIO
ORDINANCE NO. 2023-41
Introduced by Matt Grieves

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF THE 2023 NPP POWER POOL PARTICIPANT 
SCHEDULE WITH AMERICAN MUNICIPAL POWER, INC. (“AMP”); AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, the City of Huron, Ohio (the "Municipality"), is a political subdivision organized and 
existing pursuant to the laws of the State of Ohio that owns and operates an electric utility system for 
the sale of electric capacity and associated energy for the benefit of its citizens and customers; and

WHEREAS, Municipality is located in the PJM Interconnection, LLC (“PJM”) transmission system 
territory and is subject to the PJM transmission system regulations and costs as set forth in the PJM 
Governing Documents; and

WHEREAS, in order to satisfy the electric capacity, energy and other requirements of its electric 
utility system, the Municipality has heretofore purchased economical and reliable capacity, energy and 
related services from American Municipal Power, Inc. (“AMP”), an Ohio non-profit corporation, of 
which the Municipality is a member, or has heretofore purchased capacity and energy arranged by 
AMP; and

WHEREAS, in order to take advantage of economies of scale and to recognize the joint 
scheduling, interconnection and operation, and transmission arrangements that AMP Members located 
in the ATSI transmission zone coordinate and share through AMP, those Members desire to form a 
combined pool NPP to jointly purchase, manage and coordinate power supplies and related services for 
Members executing this Schedule; and

WHEREAS, Municipality and AMP desire to enter into a Power Pool Schedule (“Schedule”) for 
the purpose of: (i) energy, capacity and related product scheduling and operations under the PJM 
Governing Documents and (ii) economic purchases of capacity, energy and related products for the 
beneficial use of Pool Participants.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HURON, OHIO:

SECTION 1. That the form of 2023 NPP Power Pool Participant Schedule attached hereto as 
“Exhibit 1” including Appendices thereto between this Municipality and AMP, be, and the same hereby 
is approved substantially in the form attached hereto, subject to and with any and all changes provided 
herein and therein.

SECTION 2. That the City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver 
on behalf of this Municipality the 2023 NPP Power Pool Participant Schedule, substantially in the form 
attached hereto as “Exhibit 1.”

SECTION 3. That the Municipality authorizes AMP to purchase on the Municipality's behalf, 
in accordance with the procedures set forth in the 2023 NPP Power Pool Participant Schedule, and 
Municipality agrees to reimburse AMP for all costs incurred by AMP for Pool Resources and services plus 
any service fees associated with the purchase of Pool Resources and services set forth therein.

SECTION 4.  That the Service Director or their designee is hereby designated as Municipality's 
authorized personnel to approve and authorize AMP’s acquisition of Pool Resources and to vote on Pool 
activities in accordance with the terms and conditions in the 2023 NPP Power Pool Participant Schedule
on behalf of Municipality.

SECTION 5. It is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and 
relating to the adoption of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and of any of its committees that resulted in such formal action, were in 
meeting open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements, including Section 121.22 of the 
Ohio Revised Code.

SECTION 6. If any section, subsection, paragraph, clause or provision of any part thereof of 
this Ordinance shall be finally adjudicated by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the 
remainder of this Ordinance shall be unaffected by such adjudication and all the remaining provisions of 
the Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect as though such section,  subsection, paragraph,  



clause or provision or any part thereof so adjudicated to be invalid had not, to the extent of such 
invalidity, been included herein.

SECTION 7.  That this Ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency measure necessary for 
the immediate preservation of the public health, safety and general welfare of the residents, and to 
ensure the sound fiscal administration of the City of Huron; WHEREFORE, this Ordinance shall take 
effect immediately upon its adoption.

____________________________________
Monty Tapp, Mayor

ATTEST: ___________________________
Clerk of Council

ADOPTED: _________________________



AMP Contract No. 2024-009425-SCHED

1

CITY OF HURON, OHIO
2023 NPP POWER POOL PARTICIPANT SCHEDULE

TO
AMERICAN MUNICIPAL POWER, INC.

AND
CITY OF HURON, OHIO

MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT 
(AMP CONTRACT NO. C-3-2006-5025

WHEREAS, the City of Huron, Ohio (“Municipality”) and American Municipal 
Power, Inc. (“AMP”) collectively (“Parties”) have entered into a Master Service 
Agreement (“Agreement”) under which certain services may be provided under 
schedules thereto; and

WHEREAS, in order to take advantage of economies of scale and to recognize 
the joint scheduling, interconnection and operation, and transmission arrangements that 
AMP Members located in the ATSI transmission zone coordinate and share through 
AMP, those Members desire to form a combined pool NPP to jointly purchase, manage 
and coordinate power supplies and related services for Members executing this 
Schedule; and

WHEREAS, Municipality and AMP desire to enter into this Northern Power Pool 
Schedule (“Schedule”) for the purpose of: (i) energy, capacity and related product 
scheduling and operations under the PJM Governing Documents and (ii) economic 
purchases of capacity, energy and related products for the beneficial use of Pool 
Participants.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the following mutual promises, AMP and 
Municipality agree as follows:

SECTION 1.  DEFINITIONS 
As used in this Agreement, the terms that are defined in the PJM Governing Documents 
shall have the definitions provided therein, and the following defined terms shall have 
the respective meanings set forth below: 

 (a) 1CP - The hour of each of Transmission Zone’s single highest load during 
the previous Delivery Year.

5CPs - The hour of each of PJM’s five highest coincident peak loads 
during the previous calendar year used by PJM to determine load’s 
Installed Capacity Demand.

(b) Allowable Non-Pool Power – The maximum amount of Non-Pool Power 



AMP Contract No. 2024-009425-SCHED

2

that a Pool Participant can utilize for the upcoming year.  During the Term 
of this Schedule, there will not be a limit on Non-Pool Power unless the 
Pool has purchased Pool Power for a term greater than one (1) year 
according to the procedures in Section 4.A.

(c) Applicable Law – All federal, state and local law and regulations including 
but not limited to the Federal Power Act, the Regional Transmission 
Organization’s Governing Documents, the terms and conditions of any 
Interconnection and Operating agreements entered into with the 
interconnecting Transmission Zone whether directly by the Pool 
Participant or by AMP on behalf of the Pool Participant, and the 
interconnecting Transmission Zone’s requirements. 

(d) Applicable Technical Standards -- Those certain technical requirements 
and standards applicable to the interconnection of Pool Participant to 
Transmission Facilities, the PJM Governing Documents; and the 
standards, requirements and guidelines of NERC and each applicable 
NERC Regional Entity.

(e) Behind the Meter Generation (“BTMG”) – A generation unit that delivers 
energy to load without using the transmission system or any Municipal 
distribution facilities (unless the Municipality consented to such use of the 
distribution facilities and such consent has been demonstrated to the 
satisfaction of PJM); provided, however, that BTMG does not include: (i) at 
any time, any portion of such generating unit’s capacity that is designated 
as a Generation Capacity Resource; or (ii) in an hour, any portion of the 
output of such generating unit that is sold to another entity for 
consumption at another electrical location or into the PJM Energy Market.

(f) Capacity Pool – Device by which installed capacity is supplied under this 
Schedule to Pool Participants.

(g) Capacity Pool Participant(s) – AMP Members receiving installed capacity 
service from AMP under this Schedule.

(h) Capacity Pool Resource – Source of capacity of the Capacity Pool for the 
benefit of the Capacity Pool Participants.

(i) Day Ahead LMP – The hourly forward market price for each pricing point 
on the PJM system calculated by PJM and posted daily around 1:30 pm 
EPT for the upcoming day, pursuant to the Day Ahead Energy Market 
rules set forth in the PJM Governing Documents.

(j) Delivery Period – The period of time when a Pool Resource is scheduled 



AMP Contract No. 2024-009425-SCHED

3

and delivered to Pool Participants’ Delivery Points.

(k) Delivery Point(s) – The location of Pool Participants’ existing facilities 
connecting their respective electric distribution systems to the 
interconnecting Transmission Zone’s transmission facilities as set forth in 
Interconnection and Operating Agreements.

(l) Delivery Year – the period from November 1 through October 31 prior to 
the start of the January 1 calendar year.  For example, the Delivery Year 
for the 2024 calendar year is November 1, 2022 through October 31, 
2023.

(m) Dispatch Center Costs –The cost for AMP’s dispatch center personnel, 
facilities, SCADA equipment required for monitoring loads, etc., that are 
allocated monthly to users of the AMP dispatch center.

(n) Energy Obligation – Each Energy Pool Participant’s hourly energy needs, 
including transmission and distribution losses as further defined in Section 
4(A).

(o) Energy Pool – Device by which energy is supplied under this Schedule to 
Pool Participants.

(p) Energy Pool Participant(s) – AMP Members receiving energy service from 
AMP under this Schedule.

(q) Energy Pool Resource – Source of electric energy or related services to 
the extent the same is utilized to provide, or is obligated to provide energy 
or related services to the Energy Pool for the benefit of the Energy Pool 
Participants.

(r) Energy Requirement – Each Energy Pool Participant’s Energy Obligation 
minus Non-Pool Energy.

(s) Financial Transmission Right or FTR is a right to receive Transmission 
Congestion Credits as specified in the PJM Governing Documents.

(t) Generation Schedule – Pool Participant’s hour-by-hour schedule of 
Municipal BTMG or Day Ahead Load Request as designated in Exhibit A. 
The deadline for submitting the Generation Schedule for the next day is 
10:00 am EPT.

(u) “Good Utility Practice” - Any of the practices, methods and acts engaged 
in or approved by a significant portion of the electric utility industry during 



AMP Contract No. 2024-009425-SCHED

4

the relevant time period, or any of the practices, methods and acts which, 
in the exercise of reasonable judgment in light of the facts known at the 
time the decision was made, could have been expected to accomplish the 
desired result at a reasonable cost consistent with good business 
practices, reliability, safety and expedition.  Good Utility Practice is not 
intended to be limited to the optimum practice, method, or act to the 
exclusion of all others, but rather to be acceptable practices, methods, or 
acts generally accepted in the region.

(v) Interconnection and Operating Agreements - Agreements entered into by 
and between either a Pool Participant and a Transmission Zone or AMP 
on behalf of one or more Pool Participants and a Transmission Zone to 
establish the terms and conditions for the interconnection and coordinated 
operation of the Pool Participants’ electric distribution systems and their 
use of certain transmission and/or distribution facilities to serve their 
respective wholesale loads, which are separate from the rates, terms and 
conditions of transmission service provided by PJM under the PJM 
Governing Documents.  

(w) Locational Marginal Prices or LMP – PJM’s hourly integrated locational 
marginal price for energy that is received or delivered.

(x) Majority Vote means both:
(i) A majority of the Pool Participants with each Pool Participant 

receiving one vote; and
(ii) Pool Participants representing a majority of the annual Energy 

Obligations (as calculated in Section 4.A for the previous calendar 
year for all of the Pool Participants.  

(y) Non-Pool Energy – Energy that is contracted for (through AMP) or owned 
or contracted for directly by the Pool Participant to serve its respective 
load and not a Pool Resource.  Some examples (although not an 
exhaustive list) of Non-Pool Energy include: a specific Pool Participants’ 
block and remaining requirements energy contracts.  

(z) Non-Pool Power – Energy, capacity and other related products that are 
contracted for (through AMP) or owned or contracted for directly by the 
Pool Participant to serve its respective load and not a Pool Resource.  
Some examples (although not an exhaustive list) of Non-Pool Power 
include: a specific Pool Participants’ project shares of AFEC, NYPA, 
Prairie State, landfill or solar power resources, certain block and remaining 
requirements energy contracts and demand response resources.  Non-
Pool Power shall also include Bilateral Sales made by Pool Participants.

(aa) Non-Pool Power Deadline – In order for the Energy Pool Resources to be 



AMP Contract No. 2024-009425-SCHED

5

properly planned and fairly allocated, Pool Participants shall not acquire 
additional Non-Pool Resources or sell a portion of their Non-Pool 
Resources for the upcoming year after October 1.  The deadline may be 
waived if AMP determines that the acquisition or sale of Non-Pool 
Resources will not impact the power costs of the remaining Energy Pool 
Participants. 

(ab) PJM - PJM Interconnection L.L.C., a regional transmission organization.

(ac) PJM Governing Documents - PJM’s Open Access Transmission Tariff, 
Operating Agreement and Reliability Assurance Agreement as on file with 
FERC and in effect as well as PJM Manuals.

(ad) Pool Participant(s) - AMP Members who execute a Schedule substantially 
in the form of this Schedule for service from AMP.

(ae) Pool Participant Average Coincident Peak Load – For the previous 
calendar year, the 12 month average of a Pool Participant’s total load at 
the hour of each month’s Total Pool Participants’ Peak Load.

(af) Pool Resource – Any or all Energy Pool Resource, Capacity Pool 
Resource or FTRs.

(ag) Pricing Point – the Pricing Point for settlements under this Schedule shall 
be as set forth in Exhibit C, attached hereto and incorporated herein.  

(ah) Real Time LMP – Hourly integrated market price for each pricing point on 
the PJM system calculated by PJM during the operating day.

(ai) Renewable Energy Credits (“RECs”) - Environmental attributes 
associated with the generation of electricity from one or more renewable 
resources and the reporting rights associated with such environmental 
attributes, which include all of the characteristics of energy produced from 
an eligible renewable resources (other than the underlying energy itself) 
which may be unbundled or separated from the energy (but without any 
unbundling or separation of any such characteristics from each other) for 
the purposes of enabling their sale such that title to the energy and title to 
the environmental attributes may be held by different persons.

(aj) Total Pool Participants’ Coincident Peak Load – For a calendar month, the 
maximum coincident hourly sum in kilowatts measured at all Delivery 
Points of all Pool Participants, plus the net generation from any generation 
electrically connected to any Pool Participant's municipal electric system.

(ak) Transmission Zones –Transmission system zone in which Municipality’s 



AMP Contract No. 2024-009425-SCHED

6

service area is interconnected to.  

SECTION 2. REPRESENTATIONS

(A) Each Party has full legal right and authority to enter into this Schedule, to carry 
out its obligations hereunder and to provide and receive the products and 
services provided herein.

(B) Each Party shall comply with Good Utility Practice, Applicable Technical 
Standards, PJM Governing Documents and Applicable Laws in performing its 
respective obligations and responsibilities under this Schedule.  

(C) Each Party will inform the other of any changes to its respective facilities or 
needs that might reasonably be expected to affect the products or services 
provided hereunder.

SECTION 3.  TERM

Subject to the conditions contained herein, this Schedule shall be for a term beginning 
on January 1, 2024 (the “Effective Date”) and ending December 31, 2030.  This 
Schedule will continue for successive one-year terms thereafter unless either Party 
provides written notice of termination to the other Party by no later than twenty-four (24) 
months before the then current term ends.  

In the event that a Pool Participant terminates this Schedule prior to the ending date of 
any Pool Resource, the Pool Participant shall be financially responsible for the positive 
differential between (1) the actual cost of the unused portion of the Pool Resource until 
the expiration of the Pool Resource, and (2) the market value of the unused portion of 
the Pool Resource, as determined by AMP.  After a Pool Participant has provided notice 
of termination to AMP, any purchases of Pool Resources shall carve out the notifying 
Pool Participant’s Pool Requirements and such Pool Participant will not be responsible 
for that Pool Resource and will not benefit from the Pool Resource.  

The method for calculating the Pool Participant’s financial obligation for the unused 
portion of the Pool Resource shall be based on the Participant’s percentage share of 
the annual total Pool Resources for the last calendar year prior to the date that 
termination was given.  



AMP Contract No. 2024-009425-SCHED

7

SECTION 4.  POOL REQUIREMENTS SERVICES

Subject to provisions of this Schedule, AMP shall be the Pool Requirements provider of 
all electric energy and capacity required by Pool Participants for purposes of providing 
electric service to Pool Participants’ retail customers and to the Pool Participants as 
users of electric service.  Pool Participants shall take and pay for the same in 
accordance with this Schedule. AMP shall provide such Pool Requirements Service in a 
prudent manner so as to provide reliable electric service to Pool Participants at the 
lowest overall cost consistent with available sources as further described in this 
Schedule.

AMP shall provide Pool Participants, energy, capacity and related services from Pool 
Resources for the benefit of all Pool Participants by purchasing various economical Pool 
Resources from time to time subject to the provisions of this Schedule.  Such Pool 
Resources shall include, but shall not be limited to, purchases or sales of short-term 
energy sources, RECs, generation owned and operated by Pool Participants or other 
municipal systems and generation owned and operated by AMP, transmission and 
related services, or a combination of the above.  

AMP shall provide the Pool Requirements Service to the Pool Participants as follows.

A. ENERGY POOL REQUIREMENTS SERVICE

AMP shall procure Energy Pool Resources on behalf of Pool Participants for periods of 
one (1) year or less, up to twenty-four (24) months in advance of the Delivery Period of 
the resource.  Energy Pool Resources may exceed one (1) year only with the express 
written authorization of each Pool Participant. 

Energy Obligations shall be calculated on an hourly basis as follows.  

Each Pool Participant’s Energy Obligation shall be equal to the metered kilowatt-hour tie 
line meter plus any Behind the Meter Generation plus Transmission Losses plus 
Distribution Losses or the Pool Participant’s Generation Schedule (if Option B is 
utilized),

Where Transmission Losses equal the metered kilowatt-hour tie line meter 
multiplied by the Transmission Loss Factor; and,

Distribution Losses equal the metered kilowatt-hour tie line meter multiplied by 
the Distribution Loss Factor.



AMP Contract No. 2024-009425-SCHED

8

Participant

Tie 
Line 
Meter 
(A)

BTMG 
(B)

Transmission/ 
Distribution 
Loss Factor 
(C)

Transmission 
and 
Distribution 
Losses 
(D=AxC)

Generation 
Schedule (E) If 

Using Opt B 
under Gen 
Deviation

Total Energy 
Obligation
F=(A+B+D) or G

Participant 1 
(No Gen)

1000 
kWh - 3.0% 30 kWh

-
1030 kWh

Participant 2 
(BTMG Gen)

1000 
kWh

500 
kWh 8.0% 80 kWh

-
1580 kWh

Participant 3 
(Using Opt B 
– Fixed Load 
Sched) N/A - 1000 kWh 1000 kWh

Pool Participant’s Energy Obligation shall first be filled by Pool Participant’s Non-Pool 
Power; provided however, the Pool Participant is solely responsible for the delivery of  
the Non-Pool Power, and to the extent Pool Participant’s Non-Pool Power is not, for any 
reason, delivered at any time during the Term, AMP shall provide replacement energy, 
to the extent the same is available, to make up for any shortfall of Non-Pool Power from 
the Energy Pool.  

The Non-Pool Energy that the Pool Participant shall utilize to meet its Energy Obligation 
for the upcoming calendar year shall not be changed after the Non-Pool Deadline.

In the event that Pool Participant is utilizing BTMG (option A or C) as Non-Pool Power, 
the hourly Non-Pool Power energy credit shall be equal to the Generation Schedule 
(Option A) or actual Municipal BTMG (Option C). 

All Energy Pool Resources and Non-Pool Power shall be arranged, scheduled, and 
dispatched, subject to contractual limitations, by AMP, which shall do so in such a 
manner as to provide the lowest overall cost consistent with reliability, prudence and all 
contractual limitations.

Pool Participant's remaining energy requirements after Non-Pool Power shall be filled 
from the Energy Pool.  

If Pool Participant’s Non-Pool Power is greater than Pool Participant’s Energy 
Obligation for any hour, Pool Participant shall sell the excess energy to the Energy Pool 
at the PJM Day Ahead LMP rate for the PJM Pricing Point.  

If Pool Participant’s Non-Pool Power is less than Pool Participant’s Energy Obligation 
for any hour, Pool Participant shall purchase remaining energy needs from the Energy 
Pool at the PJM Day Ahead LMP rate for the PJM Pricing Point times a Power Cost 
Adjustment (“PCA”) calculated to recover all of the power supply costs incurred by the 
Energy Pool for the month as follows.   



AMP Contract No. 2024-009425-SCHED

9

The PCA shall equal the Total Energy Pool Resources Costs (including Inadvertent 
Energy Costs and Costs to move to Ancillary Services to keep PCA within allowable 
bandwidth)
divided by the sum of (each Pool Participant’s hourly Energy Pool Requirements 
multiplied by the hourly Day Ahead LMP).   

The PCA shall not be greater than 1.50 and not less than 0.50.  In the event that the 
PCA would exceed those limits, then an amount of dollars (positive or negative) would 
be transferred from the Energy Pool to Ancillary Services to bring the PCA back to its 
limit. 

An example of the PCA calculation is shown below.

Participant Net kWh Cost
Market Purchases from PJM        2,220,000  $                  102,000 
Purchase of Member Excess at DA LMP             50,000  $                      2,000 
Pool Monthly Block Purchase           320,000  $                      9,600 
Pool Daily Block Purchase           108,000  $                      5,400 
Congestion and Losses on Pool Resources  $                         100 
Generation Deviation Purchases/Sales             10,160  $                         600 
Calculated Inadvertent Energy  $                    (5,000)
Costs to move to Ancillary Services to keep 
PCA within allowable bandwidth

$ 0

Total Energy Pool Resources Costs        2,708,160  $                  114,700 
Total Pool Requirements at DA LMP        2,708,160  $                  113,736 
Pool PCA  $114,700/$113,736 = 1.0084757 



AMP Contract No. 2024-009425-SCHED

10

Inadvertent Energy Costs are calculated to divide real time energy market purchases 
and sales between Energy Pool and ancillary services as set forth below. 
 

B. GENERATION SCHEDULE DEVIATION SERVICE 

AMP shall provide Generation Deviation Service to Pool Participants as follows:  

(1) For BTMG under option A and D in Exhibit A:  The generation deviation 
requirements of the Pool Participant shall be calculated on an hourly basis 
as follows:

Generation Deviation energy purchase or sale (if negative) shall be 
equal to Pool Participant’s Generation Schedule minus the net 
actual BTMG.

(2) For Day Ahead Load under option B in Exhibit A:  The generation 
deviation requirements of the Pool Participant shall be calculated on an 
hourly basis as follows:

Generation Deviation energy purchase or sale (if negative) shall be 
equal to Pool Participant’s Energy Obligation minus Pool 
Participant’s Generation Schedule;

(3) Sales and purchases of Generation Deviation Energy shall be at the PJM 
Real Time LMP for the PJM Pricing Point.  

Generation Deviation shall be calculated on an hourly basis.  An example of the 
Generation Deviation calculations is shown below.

Participant BTMG (A)
Generation Schedule 
(B)

Participant 
Energy 
Obligation 
(C)

Generation 
Deviation          
(D=A-B-C)*

Participant  using Option A 1500 kWh 700 kWh N/A 800 kWh



AMP Contract No. 2024-009425-SCHED

11

Participant  using Option B N/A
9000 kWh (Load 
Sched) 2900 kWh (2000) kWh

Participant  using Option C N/A
No schedule submitted 
(Non-Pool = Gen) N/A 0 kWh

Participant  using Option D 500 kWh
No schedule submitted 
(all Gen sold to RealTime) N/A 500 kWh

*Positive means sale, negative means purchase

C. DEMAND RELATED TRANSMISSION COSTS

Subject to provisions of this Schedule, AMP shall be the transmission requirements 
provider of all PJM transmission service required by Pool Participant to provide electric 
service to Pool Participant’s customers.  Pool Participant shall take and pay for the 
same in accordance with this Schedule.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this 
agreement shall prohibit any Pool Participant from contacting, coordinating, requesting 
or obtaining technical or other information or interfacing in any way with PJM or 
Transmission Zones regarding facilities, technical, equipment, engineering or other 
issues regarding Pool Participant-owned facilities, point of contact equipment or service 
in accordance with the terms and conditions of any applicable Interconnection 
Agreements.

The transmission rate in dollars per kilowatt-month ($/kW-mo) shall include the 
Transmission Zone network transmission service charges as well as other 1CP related 
charges listed in Exhibit A (including any transmission peak shaving savings from 
behind the meter generation located in Pool Participant’s distribution system).  The 
credit or charge shall be calculated in the same manner as that calculated by PJM.  

Transmission Demand shall be calculated on a monthly basis as follows:

Pool Participant’s Tie Line Meter + BTMG Meter at the 1CP plus any 1CP 
adders assessed by PJM for failure of BTMG to operate at their PJM 
BTMG obligation during PJM Max Emergency Generation events during 
the previous year pursuant to the PJM Governing Documents.

An example of Transmission Demand calculations is listed below (penalty).

Participant Tie Line 
Meter at 
1CP (A)

BTMG at 
1CP    (B)

1CP Adder for 
BTMG Failure 
during PJM 

Emergency (C)

Total 
Transmission 

Demand 
(D=A+B+C)

Participant 1 1000 kW 1000 kW
Participant 2 1000 kW 500 kW 1500 kW
Participant 4 1000 kW 300 kW 30 kW 1330 kW
Participant 4 (1000) kW 4000 kW 30000 kW



AMP Contract No. 2024-009425-SCHED

12

D. ENERGY RELATED ANCILLARY COSTS

Subject to provisions of this Schedule, AMP shall be the ancillary services requirements 
provider of all ancillary services required by Pool Participant to provide electric service 
to Pool Participant’s customers.  Pool Participant shall take and pay for the same in 
accordance with this Schedule.

The ancillary services transmission rate in dollars per megawatt-hour ($/MWh) shall be 
equal to:

Energy based ancillary service charges as listed in Exhibit B (including, for 
example, PJM and AMP scheduling and inadvertent charges, operating reserves, 
economic load response charges/credits, PJM interchange meter correction 
charges and transmission loss credits), plus charges or credits for FTRs 
purchased on behalf of Pool Participants divided by the sum of monthly energy 
requirements for each Pool Participant.

An example of monthly energy requirements calculations is below.

Participant Monthly Tie 
Line Meter (A)

Monthly 
BTMG  (B)

Transmission/
Distribution 
Loss Factor   

(C)

Transmission 
Losses 
(D=AxC)

Total Monthly 
Energy 

Requirements 
(E=A+B+D)

Participant 1 100,000 kWh 3% 3000 kWh 103,000 kWh

Participant 2 100,000 kWh 50,000 kWh 8% 8000 kWh 158,000 kWh

Participant 3 (100,000) kWh 400,000 kWh 3% (3000) kWh 297,000 kWh

E. CAPACITY POOL REQUIREMENTS SERVICE

Subject to provisions of this Schedule, AMP shall be the provider of capacity required by 
Pool Participant to meet PJM capacity requirements, provided that Pool Participant may 
purchase PJM capacity from suppliers other than AMP with AMP’s approval, which shall 
not be unreasonably withheld.   Pool Participant shall take and pay for capacity from 
AMP in accordance with this Schedule.  

Pool Participant’s capacity requirements shall be calculated on a monthly basis as 
follows:

Pool Participant’s purchase of capacity shall be equal to the average Tie 
Line Meter + BTMG Meter at the 5CP plus any 5CP adders assessed by 
PJM for failure of BTMG to operate at their PJM BTMG obligation during 
PJM Max Emergency Generation events during the previous year.

An example of Capacity Demand calculations is listed below.



AMP Contract No. 2024-009425-SCHED

13

Participant Tie Line 
Meter at 
5CP (A)

BTMG at 
5CP    
(B)

5CP Adder for 
BTMG Failure 
during PJM 

Emergency (C)

Total 
Capacity 

Requireme
nts 

(D=A+B+C
)

Participant 1 1000 kW 1000 kW
Participant 2 1000 kW 500 kW 1500 kW

Participant 3 1000 kW 300 kW
30 kW 13300 

kW

Participant 4
(1000) 
kW 4000kW 3000 kW

Pool Participant’s purchase of Capacity Pool Requirements Service shall be at the 
monthly rate calculated in dollars per kilowatt-month ($/kW-mo) and shall be equal to:

Net cost of capacity charges and credits as listed in Exhibit B (including, 
for example, purchases or sales from the PJM capacity market, any 
installed capacity peak shaving savings from BTMG located in Pool 
Participant’s distribution system, any bilateral transactions, and any PJM 
capacity penalties or bonus payments attributed to any Capacity Pool 
Resources)

divided by Total Capacity Requirements.

Due to the nature of the PJM capacity auctions, AMP is authorized to procure Capacity 
Pool Resources for periods of one year or less up to sixty (60) months in advance of the 
Delivery Period.  AMP shall not procure Capacity Pool Resources that will obligate 
AMP, and therefore any Capacity Pool Participants, for periods greater than one (1) 
year, unless each Capacity Pool Participant authorizes the same by affirmative consent 
in writing.    

AMP shall distribute demand response credits or charges or capacity auction credits or 
charges from PJM attributed to Pool Participant’s Non-Pool Power that are entitled to 
the same from PJM.

F. FTRs, CONGESTION and LOSSES

AMP shall procure FTRs on behalf of Pool Participants for periods of one (1) year or 
less, up to forty-eight (48) months in advance of the Delivery Period.  

AMP shall provide a net credit or charge to Pool Participant based on FTRs held by 
AMP on behalf of Pool Participant for the Pool Participant’s Non-Pool Power.  

AMP shall provide a credit or charge to Pool Participant based on congestion billed by 



AMP Contract No. 2024-009425-SCHED

14

PJM to AMP associated with delivery of Pool Participant’s Non-Pool Power.  The credit 
or charge shall be calculated in the same manner as that calculated by PJM.  

AMP shall provide a credit or charge to Pool Participant based on marginal losses billed 
by PJM to AMP associated with delivery of Pool Participant’s Non-Pool Power.  The 
credit or charge shall be calculated in the same manner as that calculated by PJM.  

SECTION 5. RATES, CHARGES AND BILLING

(1) Pool Participant shall be charged and billed by AMP, in accordance with 
Section 7 of the Master Services Agreement, for all costs incurred in 
providing Pool Resource Services, including but not limited to all electric 
capacity and energy, Non-Pool Power and transmission related charges, if 
any, determined in accordance with this schedule.  The charges will 
include all costs to AMP listed in Exhibit B, (based on known PJM charges 
as of June 1, 2023).  

(2) The following charges are not Pool-related and shall be billed to the Pool 
Participant by AMP at cost in the same manner as billed by PJM and 
Transmission Zone:

(a) Reactive and Power Factor Correction Charges from PJM or 
Transmission Zone,

(b) PJM or Transmission Zone Customer and Metering 
Charges,

(c) Transmission Zone Interconnection and Local Delivery 
Service Charges, including but not limited to distribution 
voltage delivery charges, and

(d) State taxes billed by PJM or Transmission Zone.



AMP Contract No. 2024-009425-SCHED

15

(3) Dispatch Center Costs allocated to the Pool will be allocated to Pool 
Participant based on Pool Participant’s pro rata share of the Pool 
Participants’ Average Coincident Peak Load.  A credit in kW will be given 
to Pool Participant for any Non-Pool Power resources that include AMP 
Dispatch Center Costs in the rate.  An example of a Dispatch Center Cost 
pro rata share calculation is listed below: 

Participant Pool 
Participant 

Average 
Coincident 

Peak Load (A)

Non-Pool 
Resources that 

include Dispatch 
Center Costs (B)

kW Allocation of 
Dispatch Center 
Costs   (C=A-B) 
(Max of 0 kW)

Percentage 
Allocation of 

Dispatch Center 
Costs (D)

Participant 1 1000 kW 400 kW 600 kW 12%
Participant 2 1400 kW 0 1400 kW 28%
Participant 3 700 kW 1000 kW 0 kW 0%
Participant 4 1300 kW 300 kW 1000 kW 20%
Participant 5 3000 kW 1000 kW 2000 kW 40%
Total 5000 kW 100%

(4) Pool Participant shall pay AMP's Service Fee B ($0.00058 / kWh as of 
January 1, 2023) for all energy sold or arranged for and delivered 
pursuant to this Schedule.  

SECTION 6. DELIVERY POINTS AND INTERCONNECTION POINTS

The initial Delivery Point(s) pursuant to this Schedule shall be the point(s) where the 
facilities of Pool Participant currently are electrically connected to the transmission 
system. Changes to or additional delivery points shall be arranged subject to 
negotiations with the interconnecting Transmission Zone or the orders of any tribunal of 
competent jurisdiction.

SECTION 7. SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

(1) Unless otherwise agreed, Pool Participant shall provide, or cause to be 
provided, at no cost to AMP, at each Delivery Point suitable space for 
metering, monitoring or communications equipment reasonably required 
by AMP.

Unless otherwise agreed, the Transmission Zone has installed suitable 
meters for the purpose of determining billing quantities hereunder.  All 
meters and metering equipment installed by the Transmission Zone are 
and shall remain property of the Transmission Zone.



AMP Contract No. 2024-009425-SCHED

16

Transmission Zone has agreed to provide to AMP and for AMP's use, 
metering data from each of the meters employed hereunder.  Pool 
Participant shall provide or cause to be provided, at its expense, to AMP 
real time metering data from any generating facilities operated within Pool 
Participant's distribution system.  

(2) The Parties shall keep such records as may be needed to afford a clear 
history of all transactions under this Schedule.  The originals of all such 
records shall be retained by each Party for a minimum of three (3) years 
and copies shall be delivered to the other Party upon request.

(3) Changes to this Pool Agreement, including but not limited to additions of 
new products as Pool Resources, modifications to address changes to the 
applicable rules as set forth in the PJM Governing Documents or additions 
to or removal of any Pool Participants may be added to the Pool only with 
the written or verbal approval of a Majority Vote of the Pool Participants 
then participating in the Pool.  

(4) In the event that the Pool Participant enacts an ordinance or institutes a 
policy that allows its customers the choice to purchase their electricity 
from a supplier other than Pool Participant (hereinafter “customer choice”) 
prior to the ending date of a Pool Resource, the Pool Participant shall 
continue to be financially responsible for that share of the Pool Resource 
that the Pool Participant would have used (based on actual usage from 
the previous calendar year) but for exercise of the choice of one or more 
of its customers to purchase their electricity from a supplier other than 
Pool Participant, until the  expiration of the Pool Resource or the 
customer(s) returns to the Pool Participant’s system.  

The method for calculating the financial impact of the unused portion of 
the Pool Resource shall be based on the positive differential between (1) 
the actual cost of the unused portion of the Pool Resource, until the 
expiration of the Pool Resource, and (2) the market value of the unused 
portion of the Pool Resource, as determined by AMP. 

 (5) All terms and conditions of the Master Services Agreement in effect 
between the Parties that are not in conflict with the terms and conditions of 
this Schedule shall be applicable to this Schedule.



AMP Contract No. 2024-009425-SCHED

17

SECTION 8. MISCELLANEOUS

A. Assignment.  Neither this Agreement nor any interest therein shall be assigned 
by any Party without the prior written consent of the other Party.  

B. No Waiver.  A Party’s failure to insist in any one or more instances upon strict 
performance of any provision of the Agreement, or failure or delay to take 
advantage of any of its rights or remedies hereunder, violation, or default, shall 
not be construed as a waiver by the Party of any such performance, provision, 
right, breach, violation, or default, either then or for the future.  Any waiver shall 
be effective only if in writing and signed by each Party’s authorized 
representative, and only with respect to the particular case expressly covered 
therein.

C. Law and Venue.  This Agreement shall be governed by, construed, and 
enforced in accordance with the law of the State of Ohio.  Any legal claim, suit, 
proceeding, or action brought by a Party shall be brought in an Ohio state court 
or a federal court located in Ohio.

D. Headings.  The headings assigned to the Articles of this Agreement are for 
convenience only and shall not limit the scope and applicability of the Articles.

E. Survival.  All provisions providing for limitation of or protection against loss or 
liability of the Parties, including all protections and indemnities, shall survive 
termination, suspension, cancellation or expiration of this Agreement.

F. Force Majeure.  The Parties acknowledge that Force Majeure events may affect 
the performance of this Agreement and agree that the Parties shall not be liable 
to each other for any breach or failure to perform under this Agreement caused 
by Force Majeure.  

G. Limitations of Liability.  The liability of a Party under this Agreement shall be 
limited to direct actual damages.  No Party shall be liable for any special, indirect, 
incidental, punitive, or consequential losses, damages, judgments, fines, 
penalties, costs or expenses whatsoever including, but not limited to: (i) delayed, 
lost or reduced profits, revenues, efficiency, productivity, business opportunities; 
or (ii) increased or extended overheads, operating, maintenance, depreciation, 
financing costs or expenses arising out of, related to, or in connection with the 
performance or breach of this Agreement whether based upon contract, tort 
(including negligence), warranty, strict liability or under any other legal or 
equitable theory.

SECTION 9. PRIOR SCHEDULES



AMP Contract No. 2024-009425-SCHED

18

Any Pool Schedules entered into by the Participant and any amendments thereto shall 
terminate on the Effective Date of this Schedule and shall no longer be of any force or 
effect after the Effective Date of this Schedule except to the extent billing or like matters 
remain outstanding.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed as of 
the date written by their duly authorized representatives.

CITY OF HURON, OHIO

BY:________________________

TITLE:_____________________

DATE: ____________________

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

__________________________
Municipality’s Legal Counsel

AMERICAN MUNICIPAL POWER, INC.

BY:_____________________________
Jolene M. Thompson
President/CEO

DATE: __________________________

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

BY: ____________________________
Lisa G. McAlister
General Counsel 



AMP Contract No. 2024-009425-SCHED

19

EXHIBIT A
GENERATION SCHEDULE

CITY OF HURON, OHIO

GENERATION RESOURCE = [INSERT GENERATOR NAME/DESCRIPTION] 

A. __________ Pool Participant will submit a daily schedule to AMP of BTMG that will be 
treated as Non-Pool Power (i.e., the schedule will be the Non-Pool Power).

B. __________ Pool Participant wishes to serve a portion of its load at the Real Time LMP. 
Pool Participant will submit a daily schedule to AMP of the amount of its load that will be 
treated as Pool Participant’s Energy Obligation.  

C. __________ Pool Participant will NOT submit a daily schedule.  Pool Participant’s 
hourly schedule for BTMG shall be equal to actual output of BTMG, so that all output 
will be treated as Non-Pool Power. 

D. __________ Pool Participant will NOT submit a daily schedule.  Pool Participant’s 
hourly schedule shall be equal to 0 MW, so that actual output of BTMG will be credited 
at the Real Time LMP. 

An example of the Daily Schedule to be submitted under options A and B is shown below:



AMP Contract No. 2024-009425-SCHED

20

EXHIBIT B
ASSIGNMENT OF PJM AND POOL COSTS

BASED ON PJM CHARGES AS OF APRIL 1, 2023

PJM Line Item Pool 
Energy

Transmission
Demand

Ancillary Capacity Direct to 
Participant

1100 Network 
Integrated 
Transmission Service

X

1108 Transmission 
Enhancement

X

1109 MTEP Cost 
Recovery

X

1115 Transmission 
Enhancement 
Settlement

X

1120 Other Supporting 
Facilities

X

1130 Firm 
Transmission Service

X

1140 Non-Firm 
Transmission Service

X

1200 Day-ahead Spot 
Market Energy

X

1205 Balancing Spot 
Market Energy

X X

1210 Day Ahead 
Transmission 
Congestion

X X

1215 Balancing 
Transmission 
Congestion

X

1220 Day Ahead 
Transmission Losses

X X

1225 Balancing 
Transmission Losses

X

1230 Inadvertent 
Interchange

X

1242 Day-Ahead Load 
Response Allocation

X

1243 Real-Time Load 
Response Allocation

X

1245 Pre and 
Emergency Load 

X



AMP Contract No. 2024-009425-SCHED

21

Response
1250 Meter Error 
Correction

X

1301 PJM Control Area 
Administration

X

1302 PJM FTR 
Administration

X

1303 PJM Market 
Support

X

1305 PJM Capacity 
Resource / Obligation 
Mgt

X

1313 PJM Settlement 
Inc.

X

1314 Market Monitoring 
Unit Funding

X

1315 FERC Annual 
Recovery

X

1316 Organization of 
PJM States, Inc. 
Funding

X

1317 N. American 
Electric Reliability 
(NERC)

X

1318 Reliability First 
Corporation (RFC)

X

1319 Consumer 
Advocates of PJM 
States, Inc

X

1320 Transmission 
Owner Dispatch 
Service

X

1330 Reactive Supply 
from Generation

X

1340 Regulation and 
Frequency Response

X

1360 Synchronized 
Reserve

X

1361 Secondary 
Reserve

X

1362 Non-
Synchronized Reserve

X

1365 Day-ahead 
Scheduling Reserve

X



AMP Contract No. 2024-009425-SCHED

22

1370 Day-ahead 
Operating Reserve

X

1371 Day-ahead Op 
Reserves for Load 
Resp

X

1375 Balancing 
Operating Reserve

X

1376 Balancing Op 
Reserves for Load 
Resp

X

1380 Black Start 
Service

X

1500 Financial Trans. 
Rights Auction

X X X

1610 Locational 
Reliability

X

2100 Network 
Integrated 
Transmission Credit

X

2130 Firm PTP 
Transmission Service 
Credit

X

2140 Non-Firm PTP 
Transmission Svc. 
Credit

X

2211 Day-ahead 
Transmission 
Congestion

X X X

2215 Balancing 
Transmission 
Congestion

X

2220 Transmission 
Losses Credits

X

2260 Emergency 
Energy

X

2320 Transmission 
Owner Dispatch Svc 
Credit

X

2330 Reactive Supply 
from Generation Credit

X

2340 Regulation and 
Frequency Resp Credit

X

2360 Balancing Synch X



AMP Contract No. 2024-009425-SCHED

23

Reserve Credit
2361 Balancing 
Secondary Reserve 
Credit

X

2366 Day-Ahead 
Synch Reserve Credit

X

2367 Day-Ahead 
Secondary Reserve 
Credit

X

2368 Day-Ahead Non-
Synch Reserve Credit

X

2370 Day Ahead 
Operating Reserve 
Credit

X

2375 Balancing 
Operating Reserve 
Credit

X

2380 Black Start 
Service Credit

X

2390 Fuel Cost Policy 
Penalty Credit

X

2500 Financial 
Transmission Rights 
Auction

X X X

2510 Auction Revenue 
Rights

X

2600 RPM Auction X
2630 Capacity Transfer 
Rights

X

2640 Inc. Capacity 
Transfer Rights

X

2650 Auction Specific 
MW Transaction

X

2661 Capacity 
Resource Deficiency 
Credit

X

2667 Bonus 
Performance

X

Excess Energy 
Purchase Section 
C(2)(e )(ii)

X

Generation Deviation 
Section E

X

BTMG Capacity Peak X



AMP Contract No. 2024-009425-SCHED

24

Shaving Section G(3)
BTMG Transmission 
Peak Shaving Sect. 
E(2)

X

Calculated Inadvertent 
Charges per Exhibit B

X X

 Charges/Credits 
moved from Energy 
Pool to Ancillary 
Service when PCA is 
outside of bandwidth

X X



AMP Contract No. 2024-009425-SCHED

25

Exhibit C
Pool Participants

Member Pool Transmissio
n Zone

Pricing Point

Amherst NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Beach City NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Bowling Green NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Bowling Green 
(Water Plant)

NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)

Bowling Green 
(Waste Water 
Plant)

NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)

Bradner NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Brewster NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Cleveland NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Columbiana NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Custar NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Cuyahoga Falls NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Edgerton NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Ellwood City NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Elmore NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Galion NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Genoa NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Grafton NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Grove City NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Haskins NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Holiday City 
(Village Load)

NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)

Hubbard NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Hudson NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Huron NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Huron 
(Greenhouse 
Load)

NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)

Lodi NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Lucas NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Milan NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Monroeville NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Montpelier NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Napoleon NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
New Wilmington NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Newton Falls NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Niles NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Oak Harbor NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Oberlin NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Oberlin (RNG 
Plant)

NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)

Painesville NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Pemberville NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Pioneer NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)



AMP Contract No. 2024-009425-SCHED

26

Prospect NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Seville NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
South Vienna NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Toledo NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Wadsworth NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Wampum NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Wellington NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Woodville NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Zelienople NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Monroeville 
(Data Center 
Load)

Monroevill
e GMD

ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)

Dover PJM Pool AEP AMP-OHIO LMP (PJM Node 43653269)
Holiday City 
(Chase Brass 
Load)

PJM Pool AEP AMP-OHIO LMP (PJM Node 43653269)

Jackson PJM Pool AEP AMP-OHIO LMP (PJM Node 43653269)
Orrville PJM Pool AEP AMP-OHIO LMP (PJM Node 43653269)
New Knoxville PJM Pool AEP AMP-OHIO LMP (PJM Node 43653269)
St. Marys PJM Pool AEP AMP-OHIO LMP (PJM Node 43653269)
Woodsfield PJM Pool AEP AMP-OHIO LMP (PJM Node 43653269)

Arcadia OMEG AEP AEPOHIO_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1269364670)
Bloomdale OMEG AEP AEPOHIO_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1269364670)
Bryan OMEG AEP AEPOHIO_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1269364670)
Carey OMEG AEP AEPOHIO_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1269364670)
Clyde OMEG AEP AEPOHIO_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1269364670)
Cygnet OMEG AEP AEPOHIO_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1269364670)
Deshler OMEG AEP AEPOHIO_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1269364670)
Greenwich OMEG AEP AEPOHIO_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1269364670)
Ohio City OMEG AEP AEPOHIO_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1269364670)
Plymouth OMEG AEP AEPOHIO_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1269364670)
Republic OMEG AEP AEPOHIO_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1269364670)
Shiloh OMEG AEP AEPOHIO_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1269364670)
Sycamore OMEG AEP AEPOHIO_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1269364670)
Wharton OMEG AEP AEPOHIO_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1269364670)
Wapakoneta OMEG AEP AEPOHIO_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1269364670)
Wapakoneta 
(Greenhouse 
Load)

Green-
house

AEP AEPOHIO_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1269364670)

Wapakoneta 
(Paper Mill 
Load)

Paper Mill AEP AEPOHIO_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1269364670)

Wapakoneta 
(Box Plant Load)

Box Plant AEP AEPOHIO_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1269364670)

Arcanum WASG DAYTON DAY_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472937)
Celina WASG DAYTON DAY_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472937)
Eldorado WASG DAYTON DAY_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472937)
Jackson Center WASG DAYTON DAY_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472937)



AMP Contract No. 2024-009425-SCHED

27

Lakeview WASG DAYTON DAY_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472937)
Mendon WASG DAYTON DAY_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472937)
Minster WASG DAYTON DAY_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472937)
New Bremen WASG DAYTON DAY_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472937)
Piqua WASG DAYTON DAY_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472937)
Tipp City WASG DAYTON DAY_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472937)
Versailles WASG DAYTON DAY_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472937)
Waynesfield WASG DAYTON DAY_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472937)
Yellow Springs WASG DAYTON DAY_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472937)

Berlin CPPG PENELEC PENELEC_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472951)
East 
Conemaugh

CPPG PENELEC PENELEC_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472951)

Girard CPPG PENELEC PENELEC_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472951)
Hooversville CPPG PENELEC PENELEC_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472951)
Smethport CPPG PENELEC PENELEC_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472951)
Summerhill CPPG PENELEC PENELEC_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472951)

Blakely EPPG PPL PPL_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472953)
Catawissa EPPG PPL PPL_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472953)
Duncannon EPPG PPL PPL_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472953)
Hatfield EPPG PPL PPL_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472953)
Lansdale EPPG PPL PPL_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472953)
Lehighton EPPG PPL PPL_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472953)
Mifflinburg EPPG PPL PPL_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472953)
Quakertown EPPG PPL PPL_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472953)
Saint Clair EPPG PPL PPL_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472953)
Schuylkill Haven EPPG PPL PPL_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472953)
Watsontown EPPG PPL PPL_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472953)
Weatherly EPPG PPL PPL_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472953)
Goldsboro EPPG METED AMP-METED LMP (PJM Node 123905781)
Kutztown EPPG METED AMP-METED LMP (PJM Node 123905781)
Lewisberry EPPG METED AMP-METED LMP (PJM Node 123905781)
Royalton EPPG METED AMP-METED LMP (PJM Node 123905781)

Coldwater
MSCPA METC/

CONS
MSCPA

Hillsdale
MSCPA METC/ 

CONS
MSCPA

Marshall
MSCPA METC/ 

CONS
MSCPA

Clinton MSCPA ITC MSCPA

Hamilton Hamilton DUKE DEOK_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1069452904)
Lebanon Lebanon DUKE DEOK_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1069452904)
Georgetown George-

town
DUKE DEOK_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1069452904)

Williamstown Williams-
town

DUKE WILLIAMSTOWN LMP (PJM Node 128774205)

Cannelton, IN Cannelton SIGE Cannelton



AMP Contract No. 2024-009425-SCHED

28

Berlin, MD Berlin DPL BERLIN DPL LMP (PJM Node 615760)
Bedford, VA Bedford AEP BLUE RIDGE LMP (PJM Node 35024709)
Danville, VA Danville AEP BLUE RIDGE LMP (PJM Node 35024709)
Richlands, VA Richlands APS BLUE RIDGE LMP (PJM Node 35024709)

Front Royal
Front 
Royal

APS BLUE RIDGE LMP (PJM Node 35024709)

Columbus Columbus AEP Columbus
Ephrata Ephrata PPL EPHRATA LMP (PJM Node 51220)
Perkasie Perkasie PPL PERKASIE LMP (PJM Node 32711185)

New 
Martinsville, VA

West 
Virgnia

APS NEWMARTINSVILLE-AP LMP (PJM Node 27677108)

Philippi
West 

Virginia
APS PHILPPI-AP LMP (PJM Node 27677107)

DEMEC N/A
Glouster N/A
Marshallville N/A
Paducah N/A
Princeton N/A
Shelby N/A
St. Clairsville N/A
Westerville N/A
Wyandotte N/A



  
TO: Mayor Tapp and City Council
FROM: Terry Graham
RE: Resolution No. 71-2023 (first reading) (submitted by Chief Terry Graham)
DATE: November 14, 2023

Subject Matter/Background
This resolution authorizes a one-year renewal of the Agreement previously executed with the Erie County Sheriff's
Office for the provision of emergency dispatch services. This is an automatic renewal under the same terms and
conditions unless either party gives at least 60 days' written notice to terminate. The City did not receive written
notice of termination from Erie County or the Sheriff's Office (60 days expired on November 1, 2023). Therefore,
the contract will renew under the same terms and conditions.

History
The City's dispatch services began to transition to the Erie County Sheriff's Office in 2009 with the utilization of
county dispatch during the 11:00pm-7:00am shifts. In 2012, the City formalized a two-year regionalized dispatch
agreement with the Erie County Sheriff's Office for 24-hour coverage. Since that date, the Chief of Police and Fire
Captains have served on the Regional Advisory Board as the City's representatives. The current agreement is set
to renew automatically per its terms unless either party give at least 60 days' written notice to terminate.

Service Cost for Prior Years
2018 $ 36,150
2019 - $ 43,964
2020 - $ 47,670
2021 - $ 67,000
2022 - $102,131
2023 - $102,131
Although there was a significant increase in 2022, and that same cost is carried forward to 2023, the agreement
solidifies the same level of service at a modest cost compared to housing the dispatch unit with the City. Per the
agreement, the Erie County Sheriff's Office will continue to provide emergency dispatching services for both
branches of the City's safety forces utilizing County employees. The annual fee for services rendered shall not
exceed $102,130.82.

Financial Review
The annual financials are included above. The City can expect no change to the 2024 budget for dispatch services.
The General Fund (78%) and Fire Levy Fund (22%) bear the cost of this service.

Legal Review
The matter has been reviewed, follows normal administrative procedure and is properly before you.

Recommendation
If Council is in agreement with the request, a motion placing Resolution No. 71-2023 on its first reading is in order.



Resolution No. 71-2023 Emergency Dispatch Services Renewal.doc
Resolution No. 71-2023 Exh A Emergency Dispatch Renewal 2024.pdf

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2267930/Resolution_No._71-2023_Emergency_Dispatch_Services_Renewal.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2267931/Resolution_No._71-2023_Exh_A_Emergency_Dispatch_Renewal_2024.pdf


RESOLUTION NO. 71-2023
Introduced by Sam Artino

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE AUTOMATIC ONE-YEAR REWEWAL OF AN AGREEMENT WITH THE 
ERIE COUNTY SHERIFF FOR THE PROVISION OF EMERGENCY DISPATCH SERVICES TO THE CITY OF 
HURON FOR AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED ONE HUNDRED TWO THOUSAND ONE HUNDRED THIRTY 
AND 82/100 DOLLARS ($102,130.82) FOR THE AGREEMENT RENEWAL TERM OF JANUARY 1, 2024
THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2024

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HURON, OHIO:

SECTION 1.  That the automatic one-year renewal of an agreement with the Erie County Sheriff 
for emergency dispatch services for the City of Huron for the term commencing January 1, 2024 through 
December 31, 2024 at an annual cost not to exceed One Hundred Two Thousand One Hundred Thirty 
and 82/100 Dollars ($102,130.82) is hereby authorized. A copy of the Agreement is attached hereto as 
Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof.

SECTION 2.  That this Council hereby finds and determines that all formal actions relative to the 
adoption of this Resolution were taken in an open meeting of the Council and that all deliberations of 
this Council and of its committees, if any, which resulted in formal action, were taken in meetings open
to the public in full compliance with applicable legal requirements, including O.R.C. § 121.22.

SECTION 3.  That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its adoption.

      
      Monty Tapp, Mayor

ATTEST:  
        Clerk of Council

ADOPTED:  













  
TO: Mayor Tapp and City Council
FROM: Cory Swaisgood
RE: Resolution No. 72-2023 (first reading) (submitted by Cory Swaisgood)
DATE: November 14, 2023

Subject Matter/Background
Resolution No. 72-2023 requests the Council's authorization to pay the full Bureau of Worker's Compensation
premium for the City for the policy period beginning January 1, 2024 and ending on January 1, 2025 in the amount
of $51,152. While the City has the option of making monthly payment, the City will receive a 2% premium refund
($1,023.24) for making an early payment on or before January 1, 2024 of the full premium. This premium is
approximately 4% lower than last year's annual premium (including February True-up) of $53,280.
Premium History
2020 - $48,634
2021 - $45,303
2022 - $51,092
2023 - $53,280

Financial Review
The 2024 premium payment will be proportionately allocated amongst applicable City funds with eligible payroll
expenditures, as budgeted for 2024. Any rebates or dividends received from BWC during the year will be receipted
into these funds, as well. The majority of the premium is expensed to the General Fund.

Legal Review
The matter has been reviewed, follows normal administrative procedure and is properly before you.

Recommendation
If Council is in agreement with the request, a motion placing Resolution No. 72-2023 on its first reading is in order.

Resolution No. 72-2023 BWC Premium 2024 (1).docx
Resolution No. 72-2023 Exh A BWC Premium Payment Schedule.pdf

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2278292/Resolution_No._72-2023_BWC_Premium_2024__1_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2268161/Resolution_No._72-2023_Exh_A_BWC_Premium_Payment_Schedule.pdf


RESOLUTION NO. 72-2023
Introduced by Sam Artino

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO MAKE AN ANNUAL PREMIUM PAYMENT TO THE 
BUREAU OF WORKERS COMPENSATION FOR THE POLICY PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2024 THROUGH JANUARY 
1, 2025 IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED FIFTY-ONE THOUSAND ONE HUNDRED FIFTY-TWO AND 00/100 
DOLLARS ($51,152.00)

WHEREAS, the City Manager has recommended payment of the full annual premium to the 
Bureau of Workers Compensation for the policy period January 1, 2024 through January 1, 2025 in the 
amount of Fifty-One Thousand One Hundred Fifty-Two and 00/100 Dollars ($51,152.00),

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HURON, OHIO, THAT:

SECTION 1. That the City Manager is authorized and directed to pay the full premium 
payment to the Bureau of Worker’s Compensation for the policy period of January 1, 2024 through 
January 1, 2025 in the amount of Fifty-One Thousand One Hundred Fifty-Two and 00/100 Dollars 
($51,152.00); a copy of the annual premium installment schedule is attached hereto as Exhibit “A”.

SECTION 2. It is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and 
relating to the adoption of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this Council, and that all
deliberations of this Council and of any of its committees that resulted in such formal action, were in 
meeting open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements, including Section 121.22 of the 
Ohio Revised Code.

SECTION 3.  That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and immediately after its 
adoption.

____________________________________
              Monty Tapp, Mayor

ATTEST: ____________________________
            Clerk of Council

ADOPTED:  ________________________











  
TO: Mayor Tapp and City Council
FROM: Cory Swaisgood
RE: Resolution No. 73-2023 (first reading) (submitted by Cory Swaisgood)
DATE: November 14, 2023

Subject Matter/Background
Resolution No. 73-2023 requests the Council's authorization to pay the premium for property and casualty
insurance to Public Entities Pool of Ohio ("PEP") for the policy period beginning December 1, 2023, and ending
November 30, 2024, in the amount of $105,646.53. The premium paid for the prior policy period was $98,423.00.
The premium increase of approximately $7,223 (7.34% increase) comes primarily from increasing property and
auto values to insured amounts, plus reinsurance rate increases and cyber security insurance. This is a much
smaller increase than last year, which was $15,000.

Financial Review
PEP's premium will be proportionately allocated amongst eligible City funds. The City requested other quotes and
all declined due to the inability to be competitive with PEP's quote.

Legal Review
The matter has been reviewed, follows normal administrative procedure and is properly before you.

Recommendation
If Council is in agreement with the request, a motion placing Resolution No. 73-2023 on its first reading is in order.

Resolution No. 73-2023 PEP Property and Liability Premium Invoice (1).docx
Resolution No. 73-2023 Exh A PEP Renewal Documents.pdf

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2278324/Resolution_No._73-2023_PEP_Property_and_Liability_Premium_Invoice__1_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2268790/Resolution_No._73-2023_Exh_A_PEP_Renewal_Documents.pdf


RESOLUTION NO. 73-2023
Introduced by Joel Hagy

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER’S EXECUTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND PAYMENT OF 
THE ANNUAL PREMIUM TO THE PUBLIC ENTITIES POOL OF OHIO (“PEP”) FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
DECEMBER 1, 2023 THROUGH NOVEMBER 30, 2024 IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED ONE HUNDRED 
FIVE THOUSAND SIX HUNDRED FORTY-SIX AND 53/100 DOLLARS ($105,646.53).  

WHEREAS, the City Manager has recommended payment of the full annual premium to the Public 
Entities Pool of Ohio (“PEP”) for the policy period of December 1, 2023 through November 30, 2024 in the 
amount of One Hundred Five Thousand Six Hundred Forty-Six and 53/100 ($105,646.53).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HURON, OHIO, THAT:

SECTION 1. That the City Manager’s acceptance of the proposal and payment of the full 
annual premium to the Public Entities Pool of Ohio (“PEP”) for the policy period of December 1, 2023
through November 30, 2024 in the amount of One Hundred Five Thousand Six Hundred Forty-Six and 
53/100 Dollars ($105,646.53) is hereby ratified; a copy of the premium invoice is attached hereto as 
Exhibit “A”.

SECTION 2. It is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and 
relating to the adoption of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and of any of its committees that resulted in such formal action, were in 
meeting open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements, including Section 121.22 of the 
Ohio Revised Code.

SECTION 3.  That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and immediately after its 
adoption.

____________________________________
              Monty Tapp, Mayor

ATTEST:____________________________
    Clerk of Council

ADOPTED:__________________________

























































































  
TO: Mayor Tapp and City Council
FROM: Stuart Hamilton , Service Director
RE: Resolution No. 74-2023 (submitted by Stuart Hamilton)
DATE: November 14, 2023

Subject Matter/Background
Council previously authorized an Annual Maintenance Agreement for US6/RT2 with ODOT in Resolution No. 67-
2022 adopted on July 26, 2022, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit 1.
 
Resolution No. 74-2023 authorizes payment in accordance with that Agreement for fiscal year July 1, 2022,
through June 30, 2023, for annual lane mile reimbursement in the amount of $39,158.72.

Financial Review
The payment of the annual maintenance agreement for US6/RT2 with ODOT is allocated between the Street
Maintenance Fund (21) and State Highway Fund. Historical annual payments are as follows:
2020 - $45,643
2021 - $37,888
2022 - $52,179

Legal Review
The matter has been reviewed, follows normal administrative procedure, and is properly before you.

Recommendation
If Council is in agreement with the request, a motion adopting Resolution No. 74-2023 is in order.

Resolution No. 67-2022 (adopted 7-26-22) (1).pdf
Resolution No. 74-2023 ODOT Maint Agr US6-RT2.docx
Resolution No. 74-2023 Exh A ODOT Maint US6-RT2.pdf

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2276740/Resolution_No._67-2022__adopted_7-26-22___1_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2276741/Resolution_No._74-2023_ODOT_Maint_Agr_US6-RT2.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2276742/Resolution_No._74-2023_Exh_A_ODOT_Maint_US6-RT2.pdf
























































RESOLUTION NO. 74-2023
Introduced by William Biddlecombe

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO PAY THE OHIO DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED THIRTY-NINE THOUSAND ONE HUNDRED FIFTY-EIGHT 
AND 72/100 DOLLARS (39,158.72) FOR LANE MILE REIMBURSEMENT FOR STATE ROUTE 2 IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS OF THE ANNUAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT AUTHORIZED BY 
RESOLUTION NO. 67-2022, ADOPTED ON JULY 26, 2022, FOR FISCAL YEAR JULY 1, 2022 THROUGH JUNE 
30, 2023.

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HURON, OHIO:

SECTION 1:  That the City Manager is authorized and directed to pay the annual invoice from the 
Ohio Department of Transportation for lane mile reimbursement for State Route 2 pursuant to the Annual 
Maintenance Agreement authorized by Resolution No. 67-2022 adopted on July 26, 2022 in an amount 
not to exceed Thirty-Nine Thousand One Hundred Fifty-Eight and 72/100 Dollars ($39,158.72); a copy of 
the invoice is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by reference.

SECTION 2:  That this Council hereby finds and determines that all formal actions relative to the 
adoption of this Resolution were taken in an open meeting of the Council and that all deliberations of this 
Council and of its committees, if any, which resulted in formal action, were taken in meetings open to the 
public in full compliance with applicable legal requirements, including O.R.C. §121.22 of the Revised Code.

           SECTION 3: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and immediately following its 
adoption.

______________________________________
Monty Tapp, Mayor

ATTEST: ____________________________
                              Clerk of Council

ADOPTED: ____________________________







  
TO: Mayor Tapp and City Council
FROM: Stuart Hamilton , Service Director
RE: Resolution No. 75-2023 (submitted by Stuart Hamilton)
DATE: November 14, 2023

Subject Matter/Background
Currently the City has multiple firewalls that are independently managed, and a separate solution for end point
protection. Having multiple places to monitor makes detection of any events extremely hard and doing
correlation extremely time consuming and imperfect. IT has been investigating and testing product through the
year and settled on Sophos for a single pane of glass solution. This purchase will provide the City with a high-
performance firewall with an online spare for redundancy, and a new end point protection client for desktops,
laptops and servers. These solutions come with a three-year support and Maintenace offering which will save the
City money over this period.

Financial Review
The City has budget and sufficient fund balance in the IT Fund (Fund 701) to pay for these services and
equipment.
 
Account: 701-7000-53324

Legal Review
The matter has been reviewed, follows normal administrative procedure and is properly before you.

Recommendation
If Council is in agreement with the request, a motion adopting Resolution No. 75-2023 is in order.

Resolution No. 75-2023 BCS Firewall Endpoint Protection $30,992.45.docx
Resolution No. 75-2023 Exh A BCS Firewall Endpoint Protection $30,992.45.pdf

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2277103/Resolution_No._75-2023_BCS_Firewall_Endpoint_Protection__30_992.45.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2277104/Resolution_No._75-2023_Exh_A_BCS_Firewall_Endpoint_Protection__30_992.45.pdf


RESOLUTION NO. 75-2023
Introduced by Mark Claus

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER’S EXECUTION OF THE PROPOSAL FROM BUSINESS 
COMMUNICATION SPECIALISTS (BCS) FOR FIREWALL ENDPOINT PROTECTION SERVICES AND RELATED 
EQUIPMENT IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED THIRTY THOUSAND NINE HUNDRED NINETY-TWO AND 
45/100 DOLLARS ($30,992.45).  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HURON, OHIO, THAT:

SECTION 1. That the City Manager is hereby authorized to accept the proposal of Business 
Communication Specialists for the provision of firewall endpoint protection services and purchase of 
related equipment in the amount of Thirty Thousand Nine Hundred Ninety-Two and 45/100 Dollars 
($30,992.45); a copy of the proposal is attached hereto as Exhibit “A”.

SECTION 2. It is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and 
relating to the adoption of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and of any of its committees that resulted in such formal action, were in 
meeting open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements, including Section 121.22 of the 
Ohio Revised Code.

SECTION 3.  That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and immediately after its 
adoption.

____________________________________
              Monty Tapp, Mayor

ATTEST:____________________________
    Clerk of Council

ADOPTED:__________________________



Q U O T E
Number AAAQ18656-03

162 Main Street    Wadsworth, OH  44281
Phone: 330.335.7276  Fax:  330.335.7275

www.bcsip.com

Date Nov 8, 2023

Sold To Ship To Your Sales Rep

Doug DemiterCity of Huron City of Huron
Stuart Hamilton Stuart Hamilton

330-335-7276417 Main Street
Huron, OH 44839
United States

417 Main Street
Huron, OH 44839
United States dougd@bcsip.com

Phone 1-419-433-5000 Phone 1-419-433-5000
Fax Fax

Qty Description Unit Price Ext. Price

 72  $85.70  $6,170.403-Year Subscription for Sophos Central Intercept X Advanced (Workstations)
 10  $237.45  $2,374.503-Year Subscription for Sophos Central Intercept X Advanced (Servers)

 1  $14,102.50  $14,102.50Sophos XGS 3100 Security Appliance with 3-Year Xstream Support

 1  $6,845.05  $6,845.05Sophos XGS 3100 Security Appliance with 3-Year Enhanced Support

 10  $150.00  $1,500.00Estimated Hours for Setup/Configuration assistance as needed

 $30,992.45This quote has been created based on the facts as Business Communication Specialists knows them
regarding the environment being quoted at the time of the quote.  The Client agrees to be

responsible for the cost of any additional hardware, software, licenses and labor that are a result of
a client change request to this quote.

SubTotal
 $0.00Tax
 $0.00Shipping

Due to the rapidly changing nature of the computer and IT industry, quotes are guaranteed for 15 days.

Total  $30,992.45See Standard Terms and Conditions for Payment Terms
Signature of Acceptance

Print Name: __________________________________ Date:  _______________________

Signature: ___________________________________

Signatory has authority to execute the contract and hereby acknowledges and agrees that the terms and conditions contained within
this Quote and Standard Terms and Conditions provided herewith, shall apply to all Customer-executed PO's.  The parties agree that
facsimile signatures shall be as effective as originals.

Page  1 of  1Created on 11/08/23 14:09:21 by QuoteWerks
1 of 2



 

Revised: 7/19/2019 

162 Main Street 
Wadsworth, OH  44281 

Phone: 330.335.7276  Fax:  330.335.7275 
www.bcsip.com 

 
 

Standard Terms and Conditions 
 

Thank you for considering Business Communication Specialists (BCS) for your Voice Technology needs. The following are the specific terms of this 
proposal, with the responsibilities of each party noted.  Any of the following terms or conditions that are addressed on this Standard Terms and 
Conditions will be superseded by the details as specified on the face of the proposal. 

Payment Terms 
1. Hardware and Software:  75% of quote paid upon signing of the proposal, with the final 25% due upon completion of 

implementation. 
2. Mitel Support Renewals: 

a. Hardware and software can usually be implemented within 10-14 working days after receipt of payment and 
signed proposal.  BCS is not responsible for vendor delivery delays and out of stock items.  BCS is not affiliated 
with or responsible for delays or mishandling of local or long distance services from the Client’s preferred 
service provider(s). 

b. All returned items are subject to up to a 25% restocking fee plus “as used” service time cost, with the exception 
of licenses and support and maintenance costs, which are non-refundable and non-returnable. 

3. Fixed Price Service Projects:  50% of quote paid upon signing the proposal, remaining amount billed upon completion of 
installation, payable under BCS’s standard terms of Net 20 days.  A fixed price project is any project that does not have a 
hours estimate included in the quote. 

4. Time and Materials Projects:  50% of quote paid upon signing the proposal, remaining amount billed on a weekly basis as 
cost is incurred, payable under BCS’s standard terms of Net 20 days.  An estimate with a quoted labor amount is when 
there is a line item that includes an estimate of hours.  Service time is estimated based upon our experience and may 
exceed or be less than quoted.   

Rescheduling Fee 
BCS reserves the right to charge a rescheduling fee for scheduled implementations that are postponed by the customer on short notice.  If the 
rescheduling occurs within 7 days of the scheduled time, the fee is $1,000.  If the rescheduling occurs between 8-14 days of the scheduled time, the fee 
is $500.   
 
Warranty & Additional Notes 
BCS sells only the highest quality of products.  All items sold do not have a BCS warranty.  Only the manufacturer’s warranty will apply.  Labor 
required to facilitate obtaining the warranty replacement will be invoiced according to current standard rates.  Keep all original boxes for the length of 
warranty per each manufacturer’s user manual.  BCS is not responsible to refund warranty items without the original box and all accessories.  BCS 
disclaims any and all warranties, express or implied, including but not limited to all warranties of merchantability and fitness for use for a particular 
purpose with respect to any and all goods/services that are the subject of this contract. 
 
Technical Support 
Additional customer support is provided in a variety of ways depending on the nature of the need.  This includes personal assistance over the 
telephone, on-site visits, remote connection to the users system through telecommunication software, fax back communication and by written 
documentation.  This support is invoiced weekly in 15-minute increments using the applicable rate schedule, with a minimum of one hour for onsite 
visits.  When incidental expense, including, but not limited to, travel, lodging, meals, etc., is incurred for the additional support, customer agrees to 
reimburse all reasonable costs. 
 
License Agreement 
All licenses are a one-time fee with no recurring charges for use of the software as purchased and supplied.    
 
Limit of Remedy: 
BCS’s entire liability is limited to the amount paid by the customer under the terms of this Agreement and customer hereby waives any and all rights to 
consequential and/or punitive damages.  This contract shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Ohio without resort to conflict of 
laws principles.  In the event that a claim/dispute arises between the parties with respect to this contract, at the request of either party, the same shall be 
submitted to arbitration to take place in Medina County, Ohio, by the American Arbitration Association (AAA), Commercial Division.  Any decision 
rendered by the AAA shall be binding upon the parties hereto and enforcement thereof may be entered in any court of competent jurisdiction.  
 
Mitel Support Agreements 
Mitel Support Agreements are an agreement between the customer and Mitel.  All labor completed by BCS is not covered by the Mitel Support 
Agreement.  The Mitel Support Agreement covers the following items: 

1. Covered defective equipment is replaced next day 
2. Software upgrades are included (labor to install upgrades is not included) 
3. Mitel Support Agreement allows BCS to engage Mitel Technical Support (TAC) on behalf of the customer 

2 of 2



  
TO: Mayor Tapp and City Council
FROM: Stuart Hamilton , Service Director
RE: Resolution No. 76-2023 (submitted by Stuart Hamilton)
DATE: November 14, 2023

Subject Matter/Background
This is for a purchase of a Ford F350 service truck will all required add-ons. We are starting to attempt to
standardize our truck fleet to make every truck a multi-use truck that can carry out all tasks for all service
departments. This unit is on the lot, and we don't have an estimated date to see another one. Working with the
vendor, they agreed to keep the vehicle for us and install all the additional service items until we complete
payment in early January. While this legislation is for the full amount, there will be a downpayment of $40,000
this year and the balance of $36,003 being paid in January.

Financial Review
The purchase of this vehicle is currently in the potential budget for 2024 in the Water Capital Fund (Fund 603).
The 2023 has budget to make a down payment to secure current pricing and speed up delivery of the vehicle.  

Legal Review
The matter has been reviewed, follows normal administrative procedure and is properly before you.

Recommendation
If Council is in agreement with the request, a motion adopting Resolution No. 76-2023 is in order.

Resolution No. 76-2023 Matthews Ford F-350 with Plow LOI and Purchase $76,003 (1).docx
Resolution No. 76-2023 Exh A Matthews Ford Marion Truck with Plow $76,003.pdf
Resolution No. 76-2023 Exh B Letter of Intent Matthews Ford Plow Truck $76,003.docx

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2281650/Resolution_No._76-2023_Matthews_Ford_F-350_with_Plow_LOI_and_Purchase__76_003__1_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2278081/Resolution_No._76-2023_Exh_A_Matthews_Ford_Marion_Truck_with_Plow__76_003.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2278082/Resolution_No._76-2023_Exh_B_Letter_of_Intent_Matthews_Ford_Plow_Truck__76_003.pdf


RESOLUTION NO. 76-2023
Introduced by Joel Hagy

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER OR HIS AUTHORIZED CITY DESIGNEE TO ACCEPT THE 
PROPOSAL OF MATTHEWS FORD MARION FOR THE PURCHASE OF A 2023 FORD F-350 SUPER CAB WITH 
8’ KNAPHEIDE FLIP-TOP SERVICE BODY, 4-CORNER STROBE LIGHTING, LED STROBE LIGHTING BAR AND 
WESTERN 8’ STRAIGHT BLADE PLOW AND PLOW ASSEMBLY IN THE AMOUNT OF SEVENTY-SIX 
THOUSAND THREE AND 00/100 DOLLARS ($76,003.00), AND FURTHER AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER OR HIS AUTHORIZED CITY DESIGNEE TO EXECUTE A LETTER OF INTENT WITH MATTHEWS
FORD MARION RELATING THERETO.

WHEREAS, the City obtained a quote from Matthews Ford Marion for a new Ford F-350 with a 
plow assembly to replace existing vehicles that are undriveable or in disrepair; and

WHEREAS, the City has an immediate need for this vehicle with the winter months approaching, 
and Matthews Ford Marion has a vehicle on their lot that would satisfy this need; and

WHEREAS, the City will enter into a Letter of Intent with Matthews Ford Marion under which a 
Forty Thousand and 00/100 Dollar ($40,000) down payment will be made to hold the vehicle until funds 
are budgeted for the purchase of the vehicle.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HURON, OHIO, THAT:

SECTION 1. That the City Manager is hereby authorized to accept the proposal of Matthews 
Ford Marion for the purchase of a 2023 Ford F-250 Super Cab with 8’ Knapheide Flip-Top Service Body, 4-
Corner Strobe Lighting, LED strobe lighting and Western 8’ straight blade plow and plow assembly in the 
amount of Seventy-Six Thousand Three and 00/100 Dollars ($76,003.00); a copy of the proposal is
attached hereto as Exhibit “A”.

SECTION 2. That the City Manager or his authorized City designee is authorized to execute a 
Letter of Intent with Matthews Ford Marion to make a down payment in the amount of Forty-Thousand 
and 00/100 Dollars ($40,000.00) to hold the vehicle until the remaining funds in the amount of Thirty-Six 
Thousand Three and 00/100 Dollars ($36,003.00) are made available following adoption of the 2024 
Municipal Budget; a copy of the Letter of Intent is attached hereto as Exhibit “B.”

SECTION 3. It is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and 
relating to the adoption of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this Council, and that all
deliberations of this Council and of any of its committees that resulted in such formal action, were in 
meeting open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements, including Section 121.22 of the 
Ohio Revised Code.

SECTION 4.  That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and immediately after its 
adoption.

____________________________________
              Monty Tapp, Mayor

ATTEST:____________________________
    Clerk of Council



{02933699 - 1}

2

ADOPTED:__________________________





November 9, 2023

Mathews Ford Marion
1155 Delaware Avenue
Marion, OH 43302
(740) 387 - 3673

Re: Letter of Intent - CITY OF HURON WATER DEPARTMENT

Stock/Quote #: 22518

Our intention is to purchase: One 2023 Ford F-350 Super Cab with 8’ Knapheide Flip-Top 
service body and included upgrades of 4-corner strobe lighting, LED strobe light bar, and 
Western 8’ straight blade plow and plow assembly for $76,003.00. 

A $40,000.00 down payment will be placed on the vehicle and delivery will not be taken 
until remaining balance of $36,003.00 is paid in full on or after 1/1/2024.

Contract: Mathews Ford Marion

Billing Address: City of Huron, 417 Main St. Huron, OH 44839
Phone: 419-433-5000 ext. 3
Tax Exempt Certificate: On file, if needed
Exact Titling Address: 10 Waterworks Drive Huron, OH 44839
Tax ID Number: 34-6400671

Sincerely,

City of Huron, Ohio

Cory Swaisgood, CPA

Finance Director

419-433-5000, ext. 1201

cory.swaisgood@huronohio.us



  
TO: Mayor Tapp and City Council
FROM: Stuart Hamilton , Service Director
RE: Resolution No. 77-2023 (submitted by Stuart Hamilton)
DATE: November 14, 2023

Subject Matter/Background

This resolution authorizes an agreement with Cintas Corporation for the provision of uniforms for personnel
within the Service Departments. The current agreement authorized in 2018 (Resolution 2018-82) will expire in
November 2023.   

As in past years, the City Service Departments will be receiving a new set of daily use uniforms and laundry
services from CINTAS.

 

Financial Review
All departments have budgeted these expenses in their respective #52160 uniform accounts. 

Water: average yearly cost $4384.12

Street Dept.: average yearly cost $2349.36

Walk Off Mats: average annual cost $560.00. 

Total average cost for the term of the contract: $36,397.40

 

Legal Review
The matter has been reviewed, follows normal administrative procedure and is properly before you

Recommendation
If Council is in agreement with the request, a motion adopting Resolution No. 77-2023 is in order.

Resolution No. 77-2023 Cintas 5-Year Uniform Rental Agreement.doc
Resolution No. 77-2023 Exh A Cintas Rental Svc Agr.pdf

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2278208/Resolution_No._77-2023_Cintas_5-Year_Uniform_Rental_Agreement.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2278207/Resolution_No._77-2023_Exh_A_Cintas_Rental_Svc_Agr.pdf


RESOLUTION NO. 77-2023
Introduced by Matt Grieves

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT 
WITH CINTAS CORPORATION PERTAINING TO UNIFORM RENTAL FOR SERVICE DEPARTMENT 
PERSONNEL FOR A 60-MONTH TERM

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HURON, OHIO:

SECTION 1:  That the City Manager be, and he hereby is, authorized and directed to enter into 
an agreement with Cintas Corporation for the provision of uniforms for the City’s Service Departments, 
which agreement shall be in substantially the form of Exhibit “A” attached hereto and made a part 
hereof.

SECTION 2:  That this Council hereby finds and determines that all formal actions relative to the 
adoption of this Resolution were taken in an open meeting of this Council and that all deliberations of 
this Council and of its Committees, if any, which resulted in formal action, were taken in meetings open 
to the public in full compliance with applicable legal requirements, including O.R.C. §121.22.

SECTION 3:  That this Resolution shall go into effect, and be in full force, and effect, immediately 
upon its passage.

Monty Tapp, Mayor

ATTEST:  
           Clerk of Council

ADOPTED:  








	City Council Agenda
	Huron-1063-2019 - Cover Page
	Huron-1063-2019 - Rezoning Application 2027 -2029CRW & 245 Atwood (1).pdf
	Huron-1063-2019 - Staff Report-Lemmy's ReZoning Application_EE Final (1).docx
	Huron-1063-2019 - DRAFT 9-20-23 PC DRB  Minutes.doc
	Huron-1084-2019 - Cover Page
	Huron-1084-2019 - Ordinance No. 2023-40 Lemmy's Rezoning Ordinance - Copy.docx
	Huron-1084-2019 - Ordinance No. 2023-40 Exh A Lemmy's Rezoning Application.pdf
	Huron-1082-2019 - Cover Page
	Huron-1082-2019 - Ordinance No. 2023-39 Chapter 163.04(b) Christmas and NYE holidays (3).docx
	Huron-1083-2019 - Cover Page
	Huron-1083-2019 - Ordinance No. 2023-41 AMP 2023 Northern Pool Agreement (2).doc
	Huron-1083-2019 - Ordinance No. 2023-41 Exh 1 AMP Northern Pool Agreement.pdf
	Huron-1079-2019 - Cover Page
	Huron-1079-2019 - Resolution No. 71-2023 Emergency Dispatch Services Renewal.doc
	Huron-1079-2019 - Resolution No. 71-2023 Exh A Emergency Dispatch Renewal 2024.pdf
	Huron-1080-2019 - Cover Page
	Huron-1080-2019 - Resolution No. 72-2023 BWC Premium 2024 (1).docx
	Huron-1080-2019 - Resolution No. 72-2023 Exh A BWC Premium Payment Schedule.pdf
	Huron-1081-2019 - Cover Page
	Huron-1081-2019 - Resolution No. 73-2023 PEP Property and Liability Premium Invoice (1).docx
	Huron-1081-2019 - Resolution No. 73-2023 Exh A PEP Renewal Documents.pdf
	Huron-1085-2019 - Cover Page
	Huron-1085-2019 - Resolution No. 67-2022 (adopted 7-26-22) (1).pdf
	Huron-1085-2019 - Resolution No. 74-2023 ODOT Maint Agr US6-RT2.docx
	Huron-1085-2019 - Resolution No. 74-2023 Exh A ODOT Maint US6-RT2.pdf
	Huron-1086-2019 - Cover Page
	Huron-1086-2019 - Resolution No. 75-2023 BCS Firewall Endpoint Protection $30,992.45.docx
	Huron-1086-2019 - Resolution No. 75-2023 Exh A BCS Firewall Endpoint Protection $30,992.45.pdf
	Huron-1087-2019 - Cover Page
	Huron-1087-2019 - Resolution No. 76-2023 Matthews Ford F-350 with Plow LOI and Purchase $76,003 (1).docx
	Huron-1087-2019 - Resolution No. 76-2023 Exh A Matthews Ford Marion Truck with Plow $76,003.pdf
	Huron-1087-2019 - Resolution No. 76-2023 Exh B Letter of Intent Matthews Ford Plow Truck $76,003.docx
	Huron-1088-2019 - Cover Page
	Huron-1088-2019 - Resolution No. 77-2023 Cintas 5-Year Uniform Rental Agreement.doc
	Huron-1088-2019 - Resolution No. 77-2023 Exh A Cintas Rental Svc Agr.pdf



